
 
 
 

 

 

 

 
Dr Helen Paterson, Chief Executive 

County Hall, Morpeth, Northumberland, NE61 2EF 
T: 0345 600 6400 

www.northumberland.gov.uk   
    
 

 Your ref:  
Our ref:  
Enquiries to: Heather Bowers 
Email: 
Heather.Bowers@northumberland.gov.uk 
Tel direct: 01670 622609 
Date: Tuesday, 13 June 2023 

 
 
Dear Sir or Madam, 
 

Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the CRAMLINGTON, BEDLINGTON AND 
SEATON VALLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE to be held in COUNCIL CHAMBER - 
COUNTY HALL on WEDNESDAY, 21 JUNE 2023 at 5.00 PM.  

Yours faithfully 

 

 
 
Dr Helen Paterson 
Chief Executive 
 

 

To Cramlington, Bedlington and Seaton Valley Local Area Committee members as 
follows:- 

L Bowman, E Chicken, W Daley, C Dunbar, P Ezhilchelvan, D Ferguson, B Flux, S Lee 
(Vice-Chair), M Robinson, M Swinburn (Chair), C Taylor and R Wilczek (Vice-Chair 
(Planning)) 

 



 
Cramlington, Bedlington and Seaton Valley Local Area Committee, 21 June 2023 

AGENDA 
 

PART I 
 

It is expected that the matters included in this part of the agenda 
will be dealt with in public. 

 
  

1.   MEMBERSHIP AND TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
The committee is asked to note the following membership and terms of reference for 
the Cramlington, Bedlington & Seaton Valley Local Area Committee which were agreed 
by Council on 17 May 2023.  
  
The membership is made up of the county councillors who represent the 12 electoral 
divisions in the Cramlington, Bedlington and Seaton Valley area,  
  
Chair:  M D Swinburn  
Vice Chair: S Lee; Vice Chair (Planning): R Wilczek  
   
Quorum - 4   
  

Conservative   Labour   Non Aligned  
   

Liberal   
Democrat   
    

Independent  

E Chicken  L Bowman  S Lee       C Taylor  
W Daley  R Wilczek  M Robinson        
C Dunbar               
P Ezhilchelvan               
D Ferguson              
B Flux              
M Swinburn              
                

  
Terms of reference   
  
(1)      To enhance good governance in the area and ensure that the   
Council’s policies take account of the needs and aspirations of local communities and 
do not discriminate unfairly between the different Areas.  
(2)      To advise the Cabinet on budget priorities and expenditure within the   
Area.  
(3)      To consider, develop and influence policy and strategy development of  
the Council, its arms-length organisations, and other relevant bodies, to ensure that 
they meet local requirements and facilitate efficient and transparent decision making.     
(4)      To receive information, consider and comment on matters associated   
with service delivery including those undertaken in partnership agencies, affecting the 
local area to ensure that they meet local requirements, including matters relating to 
community safety, anti- social behaviour and environmental crime.  
(5)      To consider and refer to Cabinet any issues from a local community   
perspective with emerging Neighbourhood Plans within their area, and consider local 

 



 
Cramlington, Bedlington and Seaton Valley Local Area Committee, 21 June 2023 

planning applications as per the planning delegation scheme   
(6)      To consider and recommend adjustments to budget priorities in   
relation to Local Transport Plan issues within their area, and to make decisions in 
relation to devolved capital highway maintenance allocations.  
(7)      To engage, through the appropriate networks, with all key stakeholders  
from the public, private, voluntary and community sectors to facilitate the delivery of 
area priorities. This will include undertaking regular liaison with parish and town 
councils.  
(8)      To inform, consult and engage local communities in accordance   
with Council policy and guidance, through the appropriate networks.    
(9)      To, as appropriate, respond or refer with recommendations to   
local petitions and councillor calls for action.  
(10)    To make certain appointments to outside bodies as agreed by Council.  
(11)    To determine applications for grant aid from the Community Chest, either through 
Panels for individual Local Area Councils, or through the Panel of Local Area Council 
Chairs for countywide applications.  
(12)    To refer and receive appropriate issues for consideration to or from   
other Council Committees, and as appropriate invite Portfolio Holders to attend a 
meeting if an item in their area of responsibility is to be discussed.  
  
  

2.   PROCEDURE TO BE FOLLOWED AT PLANNING MEETINGS 
 

(Pages 1 
- 2)  

3.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 
 
4.   MINUTES 

 
Minutes of the meeting of the Cramlington, Bedlington & Seaton Valley 
Local Area Council held on Tuesday, 16 May 2023 as circulated, to be 
confirmed as a true record and signed by the Chair.   

  
 

(Pages 3 
- 10) 

 
5.   DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS 

 
Unless already entered in the Council’s Register of Members’ interests, 
members are required where a matter arises at a meeting;   
   

a. Which directly relates to Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (‘DPI’) as set out 
in Appendix B, Table 1 of the Code of Conduct, to disclose the interest, not 
participate in any discussion or vote and not to remain in room. Where 
members have a DPI or if the matter concerns an executive function and is 
being considered by a Cabinet Member with a DPI they must notify the 
Monitoring Officer and arrange for somebody else to deal with the matter.   

   
b. Which directly relates to the financial interest or well being of a Other 

Registrable Interest as set out in Appendix B, Table 2 of the Code of 
Conduct to disclose the interest and only speak on the matter if members 
of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting but otherwise must 
not take part in any discussion  or vote on the matter and must not remain 
the room.   

   
c. Which directly relates to their financial interest or well-being  (and is not  

DPI) or the financial well being of a relative or close associate, to declare 

 



 
Cramlington, Bedlington and Seaton Valley Local Area Committee, 21 June 2023 

the interest and members may only speak on the matter if members of the 
public are also allowed to speak. Otherwise, the member must not take 
part in discussion or vote on the matter and must leave the room.   

   
d. Which affects the financial well-being of the member, a relative or close 

associate or a body included under the Other Registrable Interests column 
in Table 2, to disclose the interest and apply the test set out at paragraph 
9 of Appendix B before deciding whether they may remain in the meeting.   

   
e. Where Members have or a Cabinet Member has an Other Registerable 

Interest or Non Registerable Interest in a matter being considered in 
exercise of their executive function, they must notify the Monitoring Officer 
and arrange for somebody else to deal with it.    

   
NB Any member needing clarification must 
contact monitoringofficer@northumberland.gov.uk.  Members are referred 
to the Code of Conduct which contains the matters above in full. Please 
refer to the guidance on disclosures at the rear of this agenda letter.  
  
  
  
  

6.   DETERMINATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS 
 
To request the committee to decide the planning applications attached to 
this report using the powers delegated to it.  
  
Please note that printed letters of objection/support are no longer circulated 
with the agenda but are available on the Council’s website 
at  http://www.northumberland.gov.uk/Planning.aspx   

  
  
 

(Pages 
11 - 14) 

 
7.   23/00584/OUT 

 
Outline planning application (all matters reserved) for 99 dwellings.  
Land South Of Plant Based Valley, Avenue Road, Seaton Delaval, 
Northumberland  
 

(Pages 
15 - 48) 

 
8.   APPEALS 

 
For Members’ information to report the progress of planning appeals.  This 
is a monthly report and relates to appeals throughout all 5 Local Area 
Planning Committees and covers appeals of Strategic Planning 
Committee.    
 

(Pages 
49 - 60) 

 
9.   DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

 
The next meeting will take place on Wednesday 19 July 2023. 
 

 

 
10.   URGENT BUSINESS 

 
 

mailto:monitoringofficer@northumberland.gov.uk
http://www.northumberland.gov.uk/Planning.aspx


 

Cramlington, Bedlington and Seaton Valley Local Area Committee, Wednesday, 21 June 2023 

IF YOU HAVE AN INTEREST AT THIS MEETING, PLEASE: 
  

● Declare it and give details of its nature before the matter is discussed or as soon as it 
becomes apparent to you. 

● Complete this sheet and pass it to the Democratic Services Officer.  

 
Name:   Date of meeting:  

Meeting:  

Item to which your interest relates: 

 

Nature of Interest i.e. either disclosable pecuniary interest (as defined by Table 1 of Appendix B to 
the Code of Conduct, Other Registerable Interest or Non-Registerable Interest (as defined by 
Appendix B to Code of Conduct) (please give details):  
 

Are you intending to withdraw from the meeting?  
 

Yes - ☐ No - ☐ 
 

 



 

Cramlington, Bedlington and Seaton Valley Local Area Committee, Wednesday, 21 June 2023 

Registering Interests 
 
Within 28 days of becoming a member or your re-election or re-appointment to office you must register 
with the Monitoring Officer the interests which fall within the categories set out in Table 1 (Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests) which are as described in “The Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests) Regulations 2012”. You should also register details of your other personal interests which fall 
within the categories set out in Table 2 (Other Registerable Interests). 
 
“Disclosable Pecuniary Interest” means an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are aware of 
your partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in Table 1 below. 
 
"Partner" means a spouse or civil partner, or a person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or 
a person with whom you are living as if you are civil partners. 
 
1. You must ensure that your register of interests is kept up-to-date and within 28 days of becoming 

aware of any new interest, or of any change to a registered interest, notify the Monitoring Officer. 

 
2. A ‘sensitive interest’ is as an interest which, if disclosed, could lead to the councillor, or a person 

connected with the councillor, being subject to violence or intimidation. 

 
3. Where you have a ‘sensitive interest’ you must notify the Monitoring Officer with the reasons why 

you believe it is a sensitive interest. If the Monitoring Officer agrees they will withhold the interest 
from the public register. 

 
Non participation in case of disclosable pecuniary interest 
 

4. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests as set out in Table 1, you must disclose the interest, not participate in any discussion or 
vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If 
it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest, just that you have an 
interest. 

 
Dispensation may be granted in limited circumstances, to enable you to participate and vote on a 
matter in which you have a disclosable pecuniary interest. 
 

5. Where you have a disclosable pecuniary interest on a matter to be considered or is being 
considered by you as a Cabinet member in exercise of your executive function, you must notify the 
Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any steps or further steps in the matter apart 
from arranging for someone else to deal with it. 

 
Disclosure of Other Registerable Interests 
 

6. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to the financial interest or wellbeing of 
one of your Other Registerable Interests (as set out in Table 2), you must disclose the interest. You 
may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting but 
otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the 
room unless you have been granted a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to 
disclose the nature of the interest. 

 
Disclosure of Non-Registerable Interests 
 



 
Cramlington, Bedlington and Seaton Valley Local Area Committee, 21 June 2023 

7. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial interest or well-being 
(and is not a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest set out in Table 1) or a financial interest or well-being of 
a relative or close associate, you must disclose the interest. You may speak on the matter only if 
members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting. Otherwise you must not take part in 
any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted 
a dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest. 

 
8. Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects – 

 
a. your own financial interest or well-being; 

b. a financial interest or well-being of a relative or close associate; or 

c. a financial interest or wellbeing of a body included under Other Registrable Interests as set 
out in Table 2 you must disclose the interest. In order to determine whether you can remain 
in the meeting after disclosing your interest the following test should be applied 

 
9. Where a matter (referred to in paragraph 8 above) affects the financial interest or well- being: 

 
a. to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority of inhabitants of the 

ward affected by the decision and; 

b. a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it would affect 
your view of the wider public interest  

You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the 
meeting. Otherwise, you must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter and 
must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a dispensation.  
 
If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest. 

 
Where you have an Other Registerable Interest or Non-Registerable Interest on a matter to be 
considered or is being considered by you as a Cabinet member in exercise of your executive function, 
you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any steps or further steps in the 
matter apart from arranging for someone else to deal with it. 



 

Cramlington, Bedlington and Seaton Valley Local Area Committee, Wednesday, 21 June 2023 

Table 1: Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
 
This table sets out the explanation of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests as set out in the Relevant 
Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012. 
  
Subject Description 
Employment, office, trade, profession or 
vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or 
vocation carried on for profit or gain. 
[Any unpaid directorship.] 

Sponsorship 
 
 
 
  

Any payment or provision of any other financial 
benefit (other than from the council) made to 
the councillor during the previous 12-month 
period for expenses incurred by him/her in 
carrying out his/her duties as a councillor, or 
towards his/her election expenses. 
This includes any payment or financial benefit 
from a trade union within the meaning of the 
Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992. 

Contracts Any contract made between the councillor or 
his/her spouse or civil partner or the person with 
whom the councillor is living as if they were 
spouses/civil partners (or a firm in which such 
person is a partner, or an incorporated body of 
which such person is a director* or a body that 
such person has a beneficial interest in the 
securities of*) and the council 
— 
(a) under which goods or services are to be 

provided or works are to be executed; and 
(b) which has not been fully discharged. 

Land and Property Any beneficial interest in land which is within the 
area of the council. 
‘Land’ excludes an easement, servitude, interest 
or right in or over land which does not give the 
councillor or his/her spouse or civil partner or 
the person with whom the councillor is living as 
if they were spouses/ civil partners (alone or 
jointly with another) a right to occupy or to 
receive income. 

Licenses Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to 
occupy land in the area of the council for a 
month or longer 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the councillor’s 
knowledge)— 
(a) the landlord is the council; and 
(b) the tenant is a body that the councillor, or 

his/her spouse or civil partner or the person 
with whom the councillor is living as if they 
were spouses/ civil partners is a partner of or 
a director* of or has a beneficial interest in 
the securities* of. 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities* of a body 

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/made


 
Cramlington, Bedlington and Seaton Valley Local Area Committee, 21 June 2023 

where— 
(a) that body (to the councillor’s knowledge) has 

a place of business or land in the area of the 
council; and 

(b) either— 
i. the total nominal value of the 

securities* exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that body; or  

ii. if the share capital of that body is of 
more than one class, the total 
nominal value of the shares of any 
one class in which the councillor, or 
his/ her spouse or civil partner or the 
person with whom the councillor is 
living as if they were spouses/civil 
partners has a beneficial interest 
exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

 
 

 
* ‘director’ includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and provident society. 
 
* ‘securities’ means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective 
investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 and other 
securities of any description, other than money deposited with a building society. 
 

Table 2: Other Registrable Interests 
 
 
You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is likely to affect: 
 

a) any body of which you are in general control or management and to which you are 
nominated or appointed by your authority 

 
b) any body 

 
i. exercising functions of a public nature 

ii. any body directed to charitable purposes or 
iii. one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or policy 

(including any political party or trade union) 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

PROCEDURE AT PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

A) Welcome from Chairman to members and Members of the public present 

Welcome to also include reference to  

(i) All Mobile phones should be switched to silent and should not be used during the 

meeting.  

(ii) Members are asked to keep microphones on mute unless speaking   

(iii) If any Member leaves and then returns to the room during consideration of an 

application then they may not take any further part in that application. 

 

B) Record attendance of members  

(i)  Democratic Services Officer (DSO) to announce and record any apologies received.  

 

C) Minutes of previous meeting and Disclosure of Members’ Interests 

 

D) Development Control  

                                            APPLICATION  

Chair 

Introduces application 

Site Visit Video (previously circulated) - invite members questions 

          Planning Officer  

Updates – Changes to recommendations – present report  

Public Speaking 

        Objector(s) (up to 5 mins)  

  Local member (up to 5 mins)/ parish councillor (up to 5 mins) 

       Applicant/Supporter (up to 5 mins)  

      

  

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



NO QUESTIONS IN RELATION TO WRITTEN REPRESENTATIONS OR OF/BY LOCAL COUNCILLOR 

Committee members’ questions to Planning Officers  

Chairman to respond to raised hands of members as to whether they have any questions of the 

Planning Officers  

Debate (Rules)  

                                                              Proposal  

   Seconded  

    DEBATE  

Again Chairman to respond to raised hand of members as to whether they wish to 

participate in the debate  

● No speeches until proposal seconded  

● Speech may not exceed 6 minutes  

● Amendments to Motions  

● Approve/Refuse/Defer  

 

Vote(by majority or Chair’s casting vote) 

 

(i) Planning Officer confirms and reads out wording of resolution 

(ii) Legal officer should then record the vote  FOR/AGAINST/ABSTAIN (reminding 

members that they should abstain where they have not heard all of the consideration 

of the application)  

              

  

Page 2



NORTHUMBERLAND COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

CRAMLINGTON, BEDLINGTON AND SEATON VALLEY LOCAL AREA COUNCIL 
 
 
At the meeting of the Cramlington, Bedlington and Seaton Valley Local Area 
Council held in The Hub at Cramlington, Manor Walks, Cramlington, NE23 6YB on 
Tuesday, 16 May 2023 at 4.00 pm 
 

PRESENT 
 

M Swinburn (Chair) 
 
 

MEMBERS 
 

L Bowman  
E Chicken 
W Daley 
C Dunbar 
P Ezhilchelvan 

B Flux 
S Lee 
M Robinson 
R Wilczek 
 
 

  

OFFICERS 
  
  
H Bowers 
T Gribbin 
S Mavin 
R McCartney 
 
 
Public: 8 
Press: 1 
 

Democratic Services Officer 
Neighbourhood Services Area Manager 
Construction Manager – Local Services 
Infrastructure Manager – Local Services 
 

 
 
99. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Daley and Ferguson 
 

 
100. MINUTES 
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meetings of the Cramlington, Bedlington & 
Seaton Valley Local Area Council held on Wednesday, 19 April 2023 as 
circulated, be confirmed as a true record and be signed by the Chair. 
 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



101. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME 

William Wright, NE22 6LH (12 Forum Court, Bedlington) 
 

Mr Wright referred to a sycamore tree, 15 metres from his bungalow.  The roots 
had entered the sewage system and caused damage which he had to pay £50 
excess on his insurance to reline the pipe on his part of the property.  He and 
his wife were unable to flush the toilet in the evening until the morning due to 
damage. 
 
Mr Wright had contacted Councillor Malcolm Robinson some time ago who had 
liaised with Leon Savage, Trees and Woodland Team Leader and both had 
visited the property.  Mr Wright conveyed his thanks to Councillor Robinson for 
his help. 
 
Concerns were raised about the foundations to his property and of issues if it 
came to selling the property.  The council officer who had visited his property 
had advised Mr Wright to take out extra insurance, but the siting of the tree was 
the fault of the developer.  The situation was causing stress to both him and his 
wife. 
 
Councillor Flux requested that an officer visit Mr Wright's property and a report 
be brought back to the next available local area committee on the findings and 
actions. 
 
Janice Craggs, resident of Hartford Bridge referred to the meeting of 21 March 
and asked when a response would be available to issues raised by residents 
on speeding and condition of the road. 
 
Robin McCartney, Infrastructure Manager, Local Services provided the 
following response: 
 
With regard to the road condition, since 2010 a number of structural surfacing 
patching works had been undertaken.  The most recent inspection of the road 
had shown there were no individual actionable defects.  However, it was 
accepted that there was a 120 m long section of the road where the underlying 
bituminous basecourse was showing signs of deterioration and was currently 
being considered for inclusion for repair in the next programme of works. 
 
Concerns had been raised about the types of vehicles using the road and 
whether a weight limit could be imposed.  Given the nature and classification of 
the road as an A road, it would not be appropriate for a weight limit to be 
imposed. It was noted that residents reported that they were experiencing 
vibrations in properties as a result of passing vehicles.  It was sometimes the 
case at properties adjacent to highways, that vibrations could be noticed when 
large vehicles passed, however, it should be noted that human perception of 
vibrations occurred at levels much lower than those that would need to cause 
any structural damage to buildings.  It might be that the potential repairs noted 
above might help reduce any vibrations experienced. 
 

Page 4



With regard to road safety issues, analysis of the accident database of all 
personal injury accidents reported to the Police showed that there had been no 
personal injury collisions in the last 5 years in the village, the only personal 
injury collision nearby was a ‘slight’ collision in June 2019 at the A1068/A192 
junction. 
 
Speed surveys had recently been undertaken and the following information 
obtained: 
 
Speed Survey 28 March – 3 April 2023 
 
Northbound: 
Average daily vehicles – 2999 
Average speed – 30.7 mph 
85th percentile – 34.3 mph 
 
Southbound: 
Average daily vehicles – 2952 
Average speed – 28.6mph 
85th percentile – 31.5 mph 
 
Based on this data, the 85th percentile speed did not meet the normal criteria 
for intervention as such a large population of speeds were consistent with those 
expected within a 30 mph limit.  Such speeds would not be considered to be a 
site of concern by the Police in relation to deployment of mobile speed 
cameras. 
 
An analysis of pedestrian and traffic conflict at the bus stop location was also 
carried out on 28 March using a PV2 analysis.  The nationally accepted PV2 
analysis intervention value for a crossing is 0.5, the NCC minimum requirement 
taking account of the unique environment was 0.2 and the result of the PV2 
survey for Hartford Bridge at the bus stop location was 0.0009 and therefore, it 
would not be appropriate to provide a crossing of any kind at this location. 
 
Regarding the bus stops, these had been in place at the location for many 
years, without incident.  It was noted that due to the road layout, there were 
some limitations on visibility.  Potential locations to move the bus stop had been 
considered, however, the existing positions appeared to be the most 
appropriate and safest given the road layout along the length and given the 
proximity of the crest in the road alignment to the south and the bend in the 
road to the north, the current location was also close to a pedestrian access to 
Plessey Woods Country Park. 
 
Given the concerns regarding speeding and pedestrian crossing at the bus 
stops, consideration would be given to whether visibility from the bus stop 
looking south could be improved by cutting back vegetation and whether road 
markings and signage around the location could be improved to make drivers 
aware of hazards and further reduce speeds. 
 
In response to members questions, the following information was provided: 

Page 5



• The next LTP Programme was 2024/25 

• Mr McCartney would check whether there had been speed vehicles in 
the village 

• The vibrations could relate to unlevel surfaces, large vehicles, or 
manholes 

• Due to legislation, the speed limit could not be changed to 20 mph.  
ROSPA standards were applied across the whole of the county and the 
county wide speed limit in urban areas was 30 mph. Often, reducing the 
speed contributed to speeding and overtaking and bad driver behaviour. 

• 20 mph could still cause vibrations. 
 
Ms Craggs referred to the vibration and volume of traffic and stated that 
vehicles from the port used Satnav to use the road.  The speed through the 
village was a problem as it was used as a thoroughfare through a residential 
area.  Police speed vehicles had been in the area and had caught a number of 
motorists. The use of mirrors had been raised previously at the crossroads of 
Hartford Bridge Farm and Hartford Bridge Drive to improve visibility. 
 
Ms Craggs added that residents would return to ask further questions if they did 
not receive a response and would also bring forward a petition. 
 
The Chair responded that the matter would be taken back to officers for a 
response. 
 
The dangers of speeding vehicles through the village and the resurfacing of the 
road which had not been carried out properly was reiterated by residents and it 
was pointed out that an undertaking some years ago to mark the bus stop had 
not been carried out. 
 
Simon Mavin, Construction Manager referred to the patching which he would 
take back to Team Leaders and email Councillor Robinson. 
 
RESOLVED that the information be noted. 
 

102. PETITIONS  

This item was to: 

a) Receive any new petitions: 

There were none to consider. 

b) Consider reports on petitions previously received: 

There were none to consider. 

c) To consider updates on petitions previously considered: 

There were no updates to consider. 

Page 6



 

103. LOCAL SERVICES ISSUES 

Tony Gribbin, Neighbourhood Services Area Manager gave the following 
updates: 
 

Bereavement Services 

• Both crematorium and cemeteries in the South East operating well 

• Grass cutting and weed treatments had commenced.  Bank holidays and 
weather had affected the ongoing programmes. 

Waste Service 
 

● Residual and Recycling waste collection services continued to perform well 
and there were very few issues following the bank holiday catch ups 
recently.  

● In the final stages of completing a detailed review of all kerbside collection 
rounds – in response to ever increasing housing stock numbers.  More 
information on this would follow when the work was completed. 

● Demand for the bulky waste service remained high but performance was 
good, this service was constantly monitored and booking slots adjusted 
accordingly. 

● Garden waste service was up and running and also performing well. 
 

Grass Cutting 

● Required number of seasonal staff were appointed and cutting started late 
March/early April. 

● Cut 2 just finished and moving onto cut 3 in Bedlington and Cramlington 
and on cut 4 in Seaton Valley. 

● Grass cutting season started in March but there were a few interruptions in 
the form of wet weather and the usual bank holidays, which made the gap 
between the cuts a little longer than targeted for, but teams were recovering 
well.  Additional shifts had been added into the schedule and also the 
teams had worked longer on days when the weather had been good and 
allowed extended operations. 

● The very wet start had been challenging for the teams, but would push to 
recover during May (despite the extra bank holidays) 

● Work was attempted to commence at the end of March, but the weather 
and ground conditions were too wet.  

● The beginning of April also saw very wet conditions as well and Easter was 
early, so teams lost potential operational days to bank holidays in April too. 
Coupled with the bank holidays hadn’t helped this aspect of the service.  In 
the first 10 operational days, 4 days were 4 days (40%) of the operational 
capacity.  

 

 

Page 7



Weed Control 

● Spraying had commenced in all main areas and would continue to do so. Due 
to a vehicle being off the road in Seaton Valley, the programme had been 
completed.  A member of staff was now deployed into other areas to support 
those treatments. This support would be reciprocated by other areas 
deploying sweeping machines. 

● Some wider area spraying or ripping had been undertaken. 
● Regulated blue dye was also being used in devices. 

Street Cleansing 

• Scheduled works continued to operate.  There had been a couple of 
mechanical issues in Seaton Valley, but were working with other areas to 
support that service as they supported other programmed works. 

• Increased footfall, over the summer, particularly on the coastal areas, would 
result in increased resources being deployed there. This would come as and 
when necessary and was also, to some extent, weather dependent  

Members made the following comments/requests: 
 

• If certain areas of grass were left long for a purpose 

• Leaves on paths and roads along the B1326, from Aldi 

• Long grass around the bottom of trees and lampposts that the grass cutter 

had missed or not strimmed at Eastfield Glade 

• Grass cutting was required in the back lanes of Astley Road, Blyth Street, 

and Manners Gardens. 

• Areas in Seaton Valley required edging and tidying around seats. 

• A request was made to circulate to members, areas that would not be cut 

• Streets in Cramlington/Seaton Valley and Blyth had not been cleaned. 

• Who was responsible for emptying the glass recycling at Northburn – Mr 

Gribbin advised that this was Kevin Baston, Recycling Officer 

• A request for regular gully cleaning in flood areas at Park Road, Elsdon 

Road and Harrington Drive, Mr Mavin advised that cleans would become 

more frequent. 

• The Team was thanked for resolving the waste issue at a property 

• How to manage overgrown ivy?   

• Strimming was required at CLV. 
 

In response to the comments regarding some areas not being cleaned, Mr Gribbin 

explained that some streets in Cramlington/Seaton Valley and Blyth had not been 

cleaned as there was no large mechanical sweeper.  Members requested that Mr 

Gribbin inform them of what was needed so a request could be put forward in order 

to provide efficiencies. 

Simon Mavin, Construction Manager gave the following updates: 

Page 8



 

• All Highways Inspectors and maintenance crews continued to work 
inspecting, fixing carriageway defects, making repairs, and making safe 
category one defects across the Southeast area.   

• The gully emptier was fully deployed dealing with reported issues and cyclic 
maintenance.  

 

Larger tarmac patching had been carried out in the following locations: 
 

• Ringwood Drive, Cramlington 
• Atley Way, Cramlington  
• Dudley Lane, Cramlington outside learning village 

• Front Street West, Bedlington 

• Front Street East, Bedlington 

• Hall Close, Cramlington cycleway 

  
Drainage improvements  

  

• Astley Road, Seaton Delaval. 
 
The area teams continued looking and programming future planned works both 
patching and drainage improvements. 

  
Micro surfacing prep 

   

• Trevelyan Avenue , Bedlington 
 
LTP Carriageway resurfacing 
 
LTP carriageway resurfacing schemes had been carried out in the following locations 
– Spine Road, Three Horseshoes to Bebside – trial completed by WJ, captive 
shotblasting and road markings 
 
Completed and Upcoming work 
 

• Ongoing safety scheme on Bristol Street, New Hartley – kerb build outs and 
installation of speed humps. 

• Burnside, Cramlington 20 mph scheme, starting in June 

• Drainage investigation – A190 Seghill 

• Milbank Road – patching 

• St Michaels Avenue – footpath patching 

• Micro surfacing prep – Chesterhill 

• Civils prep and re surfacing – A1172 Cramlington 
   
   
Members made the following comments/requests:  
 

• An update be provided on Double Row, Seaton Delaval -  this was part of a 

new scheme, details would be shared  

Page 9



• Gullies on the B1505, Mayfield and Shankhouse, raw edge not tarmacked 

causing blockage. 

• A response had not been received from Highways following a report of mud 

slipping from a footpath causing narrowing.  Mr Mavin would chase this up as 

part of the LTP resurfacing. 

• Foot/cycle path at Brockwell needs to be checked for a trip hazard 

• Blockages of gullies close to St John’s Church, Cramlington and Windermere 

and Windburgh Drive, Cramlington 

• Thanks were conveyed for repairing footpath at Elsdon Avenue but could the 

tarmac at the top of the street be checked 

• Sinkhole at bus stop on High Pit Road – this had been put on hold until 

August/September. 

• No footpath at the hospital roundabout adjacent to Beech Avenue. 

• Thanks were conveyed to Russell Mason for the work done at Ridge Terrace, 

Bedlington 

• Damage to fence at the entrance at CLV.  Mr Mavin would contact the Senior 

Team Leader regarding this. 

RESOLVED that the information be noted and issues set out in the bullet points 
in members’ comments be followed up.  

 

104. WORK PROGRAMME 

 Information would be available following Annual Council on 17 May. 

 
 
105. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 

The next meeting would be held on Wednesday 21 June, subject to the diary of 
meetings being agreed at Annual Council on 17 May and would be a planning 
only meeting. 
 
 
 

 
 

CHAIR …………………………….. 
 

DATE ……………………………… 

Page 10



 

 

 
1 

 
CRAMLINGTON, BEDLINGTON & SEATON VALLEY LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 
 
21 JUNE 2023 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
DETERMINATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS 
 

Report of the Director of Housing & Planning and Local Services  

Cabinet Member: Councillor C Horncastle 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
Purpose of report 
 
To request the Local Area Committee to decide the planning applications attached to 
this report using the powers delegated to it. 
 
Recommendations 
 
The Local Area Committee is recommended to consider the attached planning 
applications and decide them in accordance with the individual 
recommendations, also taking into account the advice contained in the 
covering report. 
 
Key issues 
 
Each application has its own particular set of individual issues and considerations 
that must be taken into account when determining the application.  These are set out 
in the individual reports contained in the next section of this agenda. 
 
DETERMINATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS 
  
Introduction 
 
1. The following section of the agenda consists of planning applications to be 

determined by the Cramlington, Bedlington & Seaton Valley Local Area 
Committee in accordance with the current delegation arrangements. Any further 
information, observations or letters relating to any of the applications contained 
in this agenda and received after the date of publication of this report will be 
reported at the meeting. 

 
The Determination of Planning and Other Applications 
 
2. In considering the planning and other applications, members are advised to 

take into account the following general principles: 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



 
 

 
2 

● Decision makers are to have regard to the development plan, so far as it is 
material to the application 

 
● Applications are to be determined in accordance with the development plan 

unless material considerations indicate otherwise 
 

● Applications should always be determined on their planning merits in the 
light of all material considerations 

 
● Members are reminded that recommendations in favour of giving permission 

must be accompanied by suitable conditions and a justification for giving 
permission, and that refusals of permission must be supported by clear 
planning reasons both of which are defensible on appeal 

 
● Where the Local Area Committee is minded to determine an application 

other than in accordance with the Officer’s recommendation, clear reasons 
should be given that can be minuted, and appropriate conditions or refusal 
reasons put forward 

 
3. Planning conditions must meet 6 tests that are set down in paragraph 206 of 

the NPPF and reflected in National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG, March 
2014 as amended). They must be: 

 
● Necessary 
● Relevant to planning 
● Relevant to the development permitted 
● Enforceable 
● Precise 
● Reasonable in all other respects 

 
4. Where councillors are contemplating moving a decision contrary to officer 

advice, they are recommended to consider seeking advice from senior officers 
as to what constitutes material planning considerations, and as to what might 
be appropriate conditions or reasons for refusal. 

 
5. Attached as Appendix 1 is the procedure to be followed at all Local Area 

Committees. 
 
Important Copyright Notice 
 
6. The maps used are reproduced from the Ordnance Survey maps with the 

permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery office, Crown Copyright 
reserved.   

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
These are listed at the end of the individual application reports. 
 
IMPLICATIONS ARISING OUT OF THE REPORT 
   

Page 12



 
 

 
3 

Policy: Procedures and individual recommendations are 
in line with policy unless otherwise stated 

 
Finance and value for None unless stated 
Money: 
 
Human Resources: None 
 
Property: None 
 
Equalities: None 
 
Risk Assessment: None 
 
Sustainability: Each application will have an impact on the local 

environment and it has been assessed accordingly 
 
Crime and Disorder: As set out in the individual reports 
 
Customer Considerations: None 
 
Consultations: As set out in the individual reports 
 
Wards:  All 
 
 
 

Report author :  Rob Murfin 
Director of Housing & Planning 
 01670 622542 
Rob.Murfin@northumberland.gov.uk   

    
  

Page 13



 
 

 
4 

APPENDIX 1: PROCEDURE AT PLANNING COMMITTEES 
 

Chair 
 

Introduce application 
 
 

Planning Officer 
 

Updates – Changes to Recommendations – present report 
 
 

Public Speaking 
 

Objector(s) (5mins) 
 

Local Councillor/Parish Councillor (5 mins) 
 

Applicant / Supporter (5 mins)  
 

NO QUESTIONS ALLOWED TO/ BY PUBLIC SPEAKERS 
 
 
 

Member’s Questions to Planning Officers 
 
 
 

Rules of Debate 
 

Proposal 

Seconded 

DEBATE 

● No speeches until motion is seconded 
● Speech may not exceed 10 minutes 
● Amendments to Motions 
● Approve/ refuse/ defer 

 
 
 

Vote (by majority or Chair casting vote) 
 

Chair should read out resolution before voting 

Voting should be a clear show of hands. 

Page 14



 

  
 

 
 

 
 

Cramlington, Bedlington and Seaton Valley Local Area Council 
21st June 2023 

Application No: 23/00584/OUT 
Proposal: Outline planning application (all matters reserved) for 99 dwellings. 
Site Address Land South Of Plant Based Valley, Avenue Road, Seaton Delaval, 

Northumberland  
Applicant: Ms Fiona Mills 

44 Grand Parade, Brighton 
, BN29QA,  

Agent: Mr Alan Mcbeth 
22 Saturday Bridge, Gas 
Street, Birmingham, B1 2JX  

Ward Holywell Parish Seaton Valley 
Valid Date: 16 February 2023 Expiry 

Date: 
18 May 2023 

Name:  Mrs Tamsin Wood 
Job Title:  Principal Planning Officer 
Tel No:  07966331977 

Case Officer 
Details: 

Email: tamsin.wood@northumberland.gov.uk 
 
Recommendation:  
 
That this application be GRANTED permission subject to a Section 106 agreement 
securing Affordable Housing on site and contributions of £387,000 towards 
education facilities, £73,200 towards healthcare,  £60,885 towards coastal mitigation 
and contributions towards amenity green space,  parks and gardens, and play for 
children and young people 
 
 

 
 
 

This material has been reproduced from Ordnance Survey digital map data with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationery Office © 
Crown Copyright (Not to Scale) 

 
 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



 

 
 
1.  Introduction 
 
1.1  This application is to be determined at committee as the recommendation is 
contrary to the objection received from the Town Council. 
 
2.  Description of the Proposals 
 
2.1  Outline Planning permission is sought for the construction of 99 dwellings of 
different sizes on land measuring 3.09 hectares in size, directly south of the former 
Proctor and Gamble site which is now used by the NHS. The site which is located to 
the south of Seaton Delaval,  is mainly covered in overgrown grass, with an area of 
hard standing to the western side.  
 
2.2    Whilst all matters have been reserved for approval at a later stage an 
indicative zonal plan has been submitted with the application which shows the 
dwellings would be located mainly along a linear west/ easterly road through the 
centre of the site, with off shoots, which would lead to a double ended cul de sac at 
the eastern end of the site. This also shows that Suds basins  and access into the 
site, would  be provided at the western side of the site.  A design and access 
statement has also been submitted which states ‘Dwellings will not exceed 99 
dwellings with a suggested ratio of 20% x 2 bed – 45% 3 bed and 35% 4 bed . 
(Subject to design development and market study.) This equates to a proposed 
housing density of approx 31.3 dwellings per hectare ( including the Green Belt 
space to the West.)’.    
 
2.3  Under the provisions of the Northumberland Local Plan there is a requirement 
for the provision of 10% affordable homes across the site. Within the planning 
statement the applicant has confirmed their intention to provide affordable homes.  
 
2.4  The site is bounded by residential development to the east, employment land 
to the north, the A190 Avenue Road to the west and greenfield land to the south. A 
tree belt runs along the southern and eastern boundaries of the site.  The site is 
south of the former Procter & Gamble factory which is now used by the NHS. The 
site was previously used as private playing pitches for Procter & Gamble employees 
only before the factory closed. No remnants of the playing pitches remain. The site is 
not subject to any ecological designations and does not have any designated 
heritage assets. The closest ecological designation is Holywell Pond, Site of Special 
Scientific Interest, which is over 1.3km away to the north east and is separated from 
the site by existing development. The closest heritage asset is the Grade II Seaton 
Delaval War Memorial located over 400m north and again is separated by existing 
development. The vast majority of the site is classed as ‘white land’ in the local plan, 
although a small part to the west, closest to Avenue Road, is designated as Green 
Belt. This is the area the SUDs ponds are proposed. The Seaton Valley 
Neighbourhood Plan, which concentrates on open space designations, has not 
identified this land for open space protection. 
 
 
3.  Planning History 

 
Reference Number: 21/02285/FUL 

Page 16



 

Description: Erection of 92 dwellings and associated access, infrastructure 
and landscaping.  
Status: WDN 
 
Reference Number: B/93/C/0231/P 
Description: Proposed erection of 10 No. Bungalows for housing association  
Status: REF   

 
4.  Consultee Responses 
 
Seaton Valley Parish 
Council  

Members agreed to raise an OBJECTION to the proposed 
outline application on the following grounds: The site is more 
suitable and preferable for commercial development. The 
proposed development would be disconnected from the 
villages of Seaton Delaval and Seghill. There isn’t a need for 
additional housing of this type in Seaton Valley over and above 
developments on sites that have already been identified in 
NCCs Local Plan. A development of this size would require the 
schools in the area to be enlarged to accommodate the new 
pupils. The increase in the outline plan to build 99 homes 
would result in a reduction of green spaces in the development 
site. There are concerns over the increase in traffic at the 
roundabout on Avenue Road (A190) which is already a busy 
route that would need to be shared with traffic and deliveries 
onto the NHS site. Vehicle access to the development would 
also need to be over the private land owned by the NHS. 

Highways  1) Amended plans and/or additional information required: 
 2)No objections subject to conditions. 

Affordable Housing  10 affordable dwellings are required.  
NHS NORTH EAST 
& CUMBRIA ICB  

Request that a single payment of £73,200 is required from the 
developer towards healthcare infrastructure.  

Waste Management - 
South East  

 No response received.    

Climate Change 
Team  

 No response received.    

Education - Schools   A £387,000 contribution would be sought. 
Natural England  No objection subject to securing appropriate mitigation for 

recreational pressure impacts on habitat sites (european sites). 
County Ecologist  1) Ecological assessment is required  

2) Coastal Mitigation Service is required at £615 per unit.  
Lead Local Flood 
Authority (LLFA)  

1)Object- require drainage assessment and flood risk should 
be assessed. 
2) Object to this application on flood risk and drainage grounds. 
Further information is required. 
3)No objection subject to conditions. 

Countryside/ Rights 
Of Way  

The development must include the connection to, and adoption 
of the existing privately connected lighting columns currently 
situated along the footpath. Details of any changes to the 
boundary treatments on the north and south sides of the 
footpath, and any proposed direct links to the footpath from the 
development, must be agreed with the County Council Rights 
of Way Team. I have no objection to the proposed 
development on the condition that Public Footpath No. 152 is 

Page 17



 

protected throughout. No action should be taken to disturb the 
path surface, without prior consent from ourselves as Highway 
Authority, obstruct the path or in any way prevent or deter 
public use without the necessary temporary closure or 
Diversion Order having been made, confirmed and an 
acceptable alternative route provided. 

Public Protection  No objection subject to conditions.   
Strategic Estates  No response received.    
Fire & Rescue 
Service  

No objection in principle to the above proposal subject to it 
complying with the requirements of section 13 and 14 of 
Approved Document B – Volume 1. 

Architectural Liaison 
Officer - Police  

At this stage of planning the Outline application contains 
insufficient detail to comment fully on the proposals. 

Northumbria 
Ambulance Service  

 No response received.    

Forestry Commission   No response received.    
 
 

 
5.  Public Responses 
 
Neighbour Notification 
 

Number of Neighbours Notified 54 
Number of Objections 4 
Number of Support 0 
Number of General Comments 0 

 
Copies of all representations received are available in the Member’s Lounge 
 and will also be made available at the meeting of the Committee 
 
Notices 
Stat Pub & PROW  3/3/23 
News Post Leader 3rd March 2023  
 
Summary of Responses: 
 
3 letters of objection (2 from the same person) have been received which in 
summary raise concerns regarding: 
-High demand for jobs by locals and removal of employment land 
-Details are vague and waste of public taxes. 
-Access to the site is unsuitable from main arterial link road and sae access road as 
the NHS. cause hindrance of vital NHS supplies 
-There will be parking problems in the estate 
- The proposal does not satisfy local need for housing. 
- The application site was discounted for housing in 2019 SHLAA Plan. 
- The application site was identified as allocated employment land in the 
neighbourhood plan. - The proposed development would present a poor relationship 
between the prospective occupiers of the dwellings and the NHS factory complex-  
lead to poor living conditions for the prospective residents and add commercial 
pressures on the NHS. 
- A mature boundary woodland borders existing properties, not the case for the 
application site. 

Page 18



 

-  The greenfield has formed part of the overall factory complex and is included in all 
of its previous planning applications. So effectively the proposed housing would fall 
within the factory complex itself 
- SHLAA read:- “Allocated employment land and therefore not considered suitable at 
the present time for residential development, either in whole OR PART” (emphasis 
added) 
- Introduces unnecessary and unacceptable future constraints in terms of its 
employment use and, as such, the employment role of Seaton Delaval. 
-Service Centres, such as Seaton Delaval, are the second tier of settlements. These 
provide local services to their surrounding areas and have an employment role, as 
well as a housing one 
- 2017 Appeal Decision for 285 residential dwellings in New Hartley discussed 
access to employment provision 
-Future needs and changes of the factory complex- no longer proposed as open 
space, site was site was to be used as parking for extended packing hall. 
- Social objectives of sustainable development. The prospective occupiers of the 
dwellings would have poor living conditions- noise- no assessment on intrusiveness, 
air pollution, lighting, privacy levels etc  
- Omitted area of land could potentially be the only space left for additional needs of 
the factory complex- to east of site. 
 - Refers to Appendix H1 of the Main Modifications (albeit now it is the adopted 
plans) and requirement for open space requirements. 
- The proposal would cause significant harm to the natural environment in this part of 
Seaton Delaval, especially the setting of the Green Belt and the much-valued 
amenity of the Public Right of Way. 
- Not well designed, car dominated, inappropriate pattern of plots. Contrary to design 
policies. 
-Impact on visual amenity, no landscape and visual impact assessment has been 
submitted. 
- a refusal on premature grounds is considered to be justified. 
 
-The Northumberland and Newcastle Society (N&N) objects to grant of planning 
approval for this scheme in its current form as we believe there is insufficient detail to 
validate the application. This application is on land owned by the adjacent NHS 
Innovation Centre and designated white land in local plan. A public footpath runs 
outside the southern boundary. Outline layout very poor, so the Society awaits 
further details to be able to make a comment 
 
 
Summary of representations submitted on behalf of the Trust, as the owner of the 
adjoining NHS Manufacturing and Innovation Hub premises at Avenue Road, Seaton 
Delaval. 
 
-The Manufacturing and Innovation Hub comprises around 38,000m² of floorspace 
across a mix of lawful and unrestricted Class E (offices, research and development 
and light industrial), B2 and B8 uses, with unfettered 24-hour operations, 365 days a 
year.  
-As well as serving a range of ‘back of house’ NHS services including clerical 
functions, the storage of medical records, and PPE manufacture, the wider site has 
huge potential to provide Northumbria Healthcare with office, manufacturing and 
warehousing space to service their own supply chain and meet clinical and 
operational functions across the region moving forward. 

Page 19



 

- It is anticipated that the site will ultimately support around 590 jobs for NHS staff 
and the local community in South East Northumberland 
-The Trust’s site is identified as a General Employment Land Allocation at Policy 
ECN6 and a key general employment area at Policy ECN7 of the Northumberland 
Local Plan which seek to support main employment uses within General 
Employment Areas.  
-Policy QOP2   ensures that  neighbouring uses are compatible in terms of impact on 
amenity ie noise, disturbances, odour, gases, other emissions and any other harmful 
effects,  
- Concerns relate to  the development of residential uses in close proximity to their 
manufacturing facility  in respect of highways, residential amenity and the ‘Agent of 
Change’ principle, 
-The current outline planning application provides insufficient detail for any of these 
considerations to be adequately assessed. ie absence of any detail in respect of the 
site access. Does not consider the subject outline planning application to constitute a 
valid application, due to significant deficiencies in the information 
-To adequately assess the Agent of Change principle, the subject application should 
be accompanied by noise and lighting assessments, with details of any necessary 
mitigation. Without  granting planning permission for the residential properties would 
be premature and likely to lead to Environmental Health or statutory nuisance 
complaints against the Trust, which could ultimately jeopardise their 24-hour 
operation and put at risk hundreds of jobs-  in conflict with the Agent of Change 
Principle in paragraph 187 of the NPPF and policy QOP2. 
-Requires Flood risk assessment. 
 
The NHS appended a letter submitted under the previous application at the site, 
which in summary added the following additional comments- 
-  Awarded £30 Million from the NHS in November 2022 to deliver a new aseptic 
manufacturing unit for chemotherapy drugs at the site, and the completion in 
December 2022 of the state-of-the-art new Wheelchair Centre, storing and providing 
mobility equipment for patients across the County. This illustrates the Trust’s 
intention that the Manufacturing and Innovation Hub will operate as a ‘one-stop shop’ 
for back office and support services, freeing up capacity within their hospital sites to 
deliver enhanced patient care.  
- The Trust has significant concerns regarding the potential impact of the 
neighbouring housing development upon the rapidly expanding operation of the 
Manufacturing and Innovation Hub over the coming years.  
-The crux of these concerns are twofold; relating to the potential detrimental impact 
of the Trust’s ongoing intensification of operations upon the residential amenity of 
future occupants of the proposed dwellings and conflict with the ‘Agent of Change 
Principle’ , and the impact of the proposed new site access arrangements upon the 
Trust’s 24-hour operational requirements.  
- Impact upon Residential Amenity and Conflict with the Agent of Change Principle -
the Trust considers that the proposed housing development is not compatible with 
the operation of their site, both in respect of residential amenity and the resulting 
potential for public complaints and restrictions to be placed upon the Trust’s facility. 
- In addition to potential noise impacts arising from the intensification of the Trust’s 
manufacturing operations at the site over time, no assessment has  been undertaken 
to consider the impact of night-time floodlighting from the Manufacturing and 
Innovation Hub upon the proposed new residential properties.  Stainton Lighting 
Design Services, have assessed the manufacturing site’s current lighting, and 
confirms the  6m columns along the NHS site’s western boundary, which would 
immediately abut the proposed residential application site will create a high intensity 

Page 20



 

light source which can be viewed from most locations and generate a lot of glare in 
the general area. In particular, those residential properties closest to the Trust 
facility, with rear living and bedrooms directly facing the lighting, would experience 
glare all through the night. Stainton recommend taller screening would be necessary 
between the proposed properties and the 6 m high columns, in addition to a 2.4 m 
high fence. It could potentially be in the form of trees.  
 - The Trust should not have unreasonable restrictions placed on them.  
 -Granting planning permission for the residential properties as proposed would be 
likely to lead to Environmental Health or statutory nuisance complaints against the 
Trust, which could ultimately jeopardise their 24-hour operation. 
-  Access- The Trust currently benefits from unfettered use of a private site access 
arrangement, secured by gates. 
-The proposed access works would be detrimental to the long-term operation of the 
facility 
- The intended adoption of the front section of the site access road means that the 
Trust could not practically ‘stack’ two HGVs behind the security barrier, as they can 
at the moment, as they are not permitted to “stack” on the public highway. The only 
way they would be able to stack HGV’s is with an expensive reconfiguration and 
relocation of a significant proportion of the site’s ‘front of house’ security 
arrangements; 
 -Currently HGV drivers can stop next to the security control hut on the Trust’s land 
to physically sign in. The new proposed layout and route means that any visitors 
would have to walk to the security hut to physically sign in. If the HGVs stop at the 
hut, as they currently do then they would be “stacking” on the public highway;  
-The application proposals leave the security control hut in its current location but 
move the barrier. The Trust does not want the barrier to be relocated in this way. It is 
inconvenient and raises security concerns. Relocating the security control hut and all 
services that serve it would be a substantial expense and one that the Trust should 
not have to contemplate. If the security control hut is moved, then the barrier could 
not be easily operated and would impact on safety.  
-The proposals will, in the Trust’s opinion, give rise to a serious risk of traffic seeking 
to enter the site having to “stack” on Avenue Road (the public highway), due to traffic 
waiting to turn into the proposed housing development. 
 -The only means of mitigating the above safety issues and adverse impacts would 
be for the Trust to have to relocate the security control hut and barrier as set out 
above. There is however no obligation on the Trust to do this nor any reason why it 
would choose to do so given the substantial costs it would have to incur to do so and 
the sterilisation it would cause to part of the Trust’s land. 
-The proposal will result in the loss of critical car parking spaces from the Trust’s site 
which impacts on their ability to serve current and future development at the Hub. 
- The safety issues resulting from stacking of HGVs on the public highway is likely to 
lead to restrictions being place on the Trust and for this reason also the application 
conflicts with the Agent of Change Principle. As the application stands, the Trust is 
not minded to agree to the use of the site access in the manner proposed due to its 
impact upon the future operation of the allocated employment site, and this is 
considered to be a material consideration in the determination of the subject 
planning application. 
 
The above is a summary of the comments. The full written text is available on our 
website at: http://publicaccess.northumberland.gov.uk/online-
applications//applicationDetails.do?activeTab=summary&keyVal=RQ4PX5QSFJ500   
 
 

Page 21



 

6.  Planning Policy 
 
6.1 Development Plan Policy 
 
Northumberland Local Plan - 2016 - 2036 (Adopted March 2022) 
  
STP 1 – Spatial strategy (Strategic Policy)  
STP 2 – Presumption in favour of sustainable development (Strategic Policy)  
STP 3 – Principles of sustainable development (Strategic Policy)  
STP 6 – Green Infrastructure (Strategic Policy)  
STP 8 - Development in the Green Belt.  
HOU 2 – Provision of new residential development (Strategic Policy)  
HOU 5 – Housing types and mix  
HOU 9 – Residential development management 
ECN 5 Large-scale windfall employment development  
ECN 6 -General employment land - allocations and safeguarding  
ECN 7 -Key general employment areas for main employment uses 
QOP 1 – Design principles (Strategic Policy)  
QOP 2 – Good design and amenity  
QOP 4 – Landscaping and trees  
QOP 5 – Sustainable design and construction  
QOP 6 – Delivering well-designed places  
TRA 1 - Promoting sustainable connections (Strategic Policy)  
TRA 2 -  The effects of development on the transport network  
TRA 3 -  Improving Northumberland's core road network 
TRA 4 – Parking provision in new development 
ENV 2 – Biodiversity and geodiversity  
ENV 7 -Historic environment and heritage assets 
WAT 3 – Flooding  
WAT 2 -  Water supply and sewerage 
WAT 4 – Sustainable Drainage Systems  
POL 1 – Unstable and contaminated land  
POL 2 – Pollution and air, soil and water quality  
INF 6 – Planning obligations 
 
Seaton Valley Neighbourhood Plan September 2021 
 
Policy SV1: Local green space 
Policy SV2: Protected open space 
 
6 .2 National Planning Policy 
 
NPPF (2021)  
NPPG (2021) 
 
 
7.  Appraisal 
 
7.1  Having regard to the requirements of Section 38(6) of the Planning and 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, the relevant development plan policies, relevant 
guidance and all other material planning considerations, including representations 
received, it is considered that the main planning issues raised relate to:  
 

Page 22



 

• Principle of development  
• Section 106 requirements 
• Design, landscaping and impact on residential amenity impact  
• Noise impact / conflict with the adjacent factory use 
• Highways  
• Flood Risk/ Drainage 
• Ecology matters  
• Archaeology 
• Contamination 

 
Principle of Development 
 
7.2  The majority of the application site is not allocated as anything within the 
Northumberland Local Plan. It is known as ‘white land’.  This covers that part of the 
site  where the indicative zonal plan shows houses are to be  located.   Only a small 
proportion of the western side of the site falls in the Green Belt and only the road that 
leads to the site from the roundabout on the A190 falls within a Key employment 
area (Policies ECN 6 and 7). The Seaton Valley Neighbourhood Plan does not 
allocate the site as employment land, as suggested by an objection. 
 
7.3  The plan defines settlement boundaries for all Main Towns, Service Centres 
and Service Villages (except in the Green Belt where inset boundaries are defined) 
unless local communities, through the neighbourhood planning process  are defining 
boundaries. The Seaton Valley Neighbourhood Plan does not define settlement 
boundaries.   That part of the site which is ‘white land’  lies directly next to the built-
up area of Seaton Delaval but within the Green Belt inset boundary and  as such this 
part of the site is considered to be within the settlement limit.   Under Policy STP1 
Seaton Delaval is identified as a service centre which can accommodate 
employment, housing and services that maintains and strengthens their roles and  
under criteria e) of this policy it specifically states ‘Sustainable development will be 
supported within Green Belt inset boundaries and within settlement boundaries 
defined on the Local Plan policies map or in neighbourhood plans.’ In terms of this 
site it is located in a sustainable location with two bus stops located within 120m of 
the site which connect the site to the regional centre of Newcastle and the main 
towns of Cramlington and Blyth. The site is located 2 miles from the A189 which 
connects to the A19 which in turn connects to the A1.  Seaton Delaval County First 
School, Whytrig Community Middle School and Astley High School are also within 
walking distance from the site as is the local library. The centre of Seaton Delaval is 
also located 600m walking distance north of the site. It is therefore considered that 
the site is acceptable as a sustainable windfall housing site, being close to services. 
As such the development would be a sustainable form of development within the 
Green Belt inset and as such the principle of  the majority of the development 
accords with Policy STP1 b) and e). 
 
7.4  The western end of the site does fall within the Green Belt however where 
development is strictly controlled. Housing does not fall within any of the uses 
considered to be appropriate development in the Green Belt under para 149 of the 
NPPF. It does however, under para 150, allow engineering operations as long as it 
preserves the sites openness and does not conflict with the purposes of 
including land within it. The indicative site plan does not show any houses on this 
part of the site but only the Suds ponds and  access road, which are considered to 
be engineering operations that would help to maintain the openness of this part of 
the site. It is considered the principle of this part of the development is therefore 

Page 23



 

acceptable and in accordance with the NPPF and Local Plan Policies STP1 and 
STP8. Overall, it is therefore considered the principle of the proposal is acceptable 
and in accordance with the NPPF and Local Plan. 
 
7.5 In addition, whilst the site had previously been used as a sports ground for 
workers at the former Proctor and Gamble site, and Sport England had originally 
objected to the previous application on this site (22/02285/Ful) because it was not 
considered to accord with any of the exceptions to Sport England’s Playing Fields 
Policy or with Paragraph 97 of the NPPF, they did eventually withdraw their objection 
to that application, as the playing field use had been superseded by another 
permission. The site is also fenced off and is not open to the public. Neither the 
Seaton Valley Neighbourhood Plan nor the Local Plan also protect the site as open 
space. For these reasons the proposal has not been assessed in terms of any loss 
of open space. The open space needs generated by the houses now being proposed 
has however been addressed below. Objections also state  that Seaton Valley has 
adequate housing provision, the site is not allocated for housing in the emerging 
Local Plan and that the Application Site (Ref 9401) was ‘discounted’ in the SHLAA. It 
is noted that the SHLAA has, in the past, discounted the site as unsuitable and 
unachievable. However, the site had been put forward and originally assessed as 
part of the factory premises as a whole, during the ‘interregnum’ between the closure 
of Procter and Gamble and new owners taking over. The site is now being promoted 
as a separate entity and has to be reassessed as such.  In terms of whether the site 
is needed to contribute to the distributed housing requirement for the designated 
neighbourhood plan area in Policy HOU 3 (and Table 7.1) of the new Local Plan, it is 
the case that the indicative requirement for Seaton Valley of 540, over the 
Northumberland Local Plan period, can be met from other committed sites. However, 
this figure is not a maximum limit. In terms of concerns raised that the site should 
also only be used for commercial purposes, as the site is not allocated for such  
purposes there would be no policy justification for refusing the application on this 
basis. Policy ECN7 is not directly relevant as the planning application site is not a 
general employment area and is identified as ‘white land’ on the policies map. Only 
the access road to the site is covered by ECN7 and as it will remain in such use, also 
by the NHS, the proposal would not prevent the main wider employment generating 
activity at the site, in accordance with that policy. 
 
Section 106 contributions 
 
7.6  New development will be expected to make best use of existing infrastructure 
where capacity exists to accommodate needs. Where improvements to existing 
infrastructure are required, new development will normally be expected to meet the 
costs of such infrastructure, along with providing any additional infrastructure 
requirements arising from the development.  Policy INF 1 seeks to ensure that such 
provision is secured at the time planning permission is granted and that all 
necessary infrastructure is provided and phased as appropriate, to serve 
development when it is needed. The provision or improvement of infrastructure 
needed to support development will usually be secured through the use of planning 
conditions attached to a planning permission or by planning obligation where the use 
of planning conditions is not appropriate.  
 
7.7  Policy INF 6 Planning obligations sets out  ‘Where it is not possible to address 
any unacceptable impacts of development through the use of planning conditions, 
planning obligations will be secured to ensure that otherwise unacceptable 
development can be made acceptable...Planning obligations will be used, as 

Page 24



 

necessary, to ensure that development meets relevant planning policy requirements 
set out in the Local Plan and any made neighbourhood plans.... Planning obligations 
will only be sought where they meet all of the following tests which require that they 
are: a. necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms; b. directly 
related to the development; and c. fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to 
the development.’ 
 
Housing Mix and Affordable Housing 
 
7.8  The NPPF advises that to deliver a wide choice of high quality homes Local 
Planning Authorities should plan for a mix of housing based on current and 
future demographic trends, market trends and the needs of different groups in 
the community. It goes on to state that Local Planning Authorities should 
identify the range of tenure and range of housing that is required and provide 
affordable housing in accordance with need. Policy HOU 5 states  ‘A range of good 
quality, energy-efficient homes, including affordable homes, will be provided to 
deliver a more balanced mix of tenures and housing types and sizes.’ Policy HOU 6 
Affordable housing provision (Strategic Policy) states ‘1. To deliver affordable homes 
for sale or rent to meet the identified needs of those not otherwise met by the 
market, 'major' development proposals of 10 or more units or 0.5 hectares or more 
(or proposals for five units or more in the Northumberland Coast Area of Outstanding 
Natural Beauty), will be expected to provide on-site affordable housing (or where 
robustly justified make an equivalent financial contribution in lieu to support off-site 
provision which will help create mixed and balanced communities) as follows, in 
accordance with the housing viability value areas shown on the Policies Map: a. 
within low value areas - 10% affordable (except developments of 10 or more, but 
less than 30 dwellings which are exempt from making an affordable housing 
contribution).’ 
 
7.9   As this application is only at outline stage, the  mix of dwellings will need to be 
assessed at reserved matters.  
 
7.10  In terms of affordable housing the local plan identifies this site falling within a 
low value area where 10% of dwellings should be affordable homes. In this case 10 
affordable homes are therefore required to meet Policy Hou6. The applicant has 
agreed to provide this. The Housing Officer recommends that the applicant provides 
3 x 2-bedroom bungalows, 3 x 2-bedroom houses, 2 x 3-bedroom houses and 2 x 2-
bedroom apartments for affordable home ownership although this could be changed 
at reserved matters stage. The affordable homes will be secured through the section 
106 and details of tenure agreed at the reserved matters stage when the actual units 
will be known. As such, the application is in accordance with NLP Policy HOU6, INF 
5 and appendix D. 
 
Open space requirements 
 
7.11  Under Appendix H of the Local Plan ‘Major’ residential development proposals 
reflecting the legal planning definition of such development i.e. those with 10 or more 
dwellings or a site of 0.5 hectares or more will be required to provide open space, 
either on-site or off site or make a contribution to improve existing provision. This 
sets out that three different types of open space  should be provided as follows: 
 
Amenity green space and natural and semi-natural green space  
Parks and Gardens 

Page 25



 

Provision for children and young people 
 
7.12 The Appendix also includes when this is required on site or off site, standards 
that should be met and formulas for working out the exact provision required. 
Normally to work out the on site or off site requirements for a full application this is 
based on the number of people expected to live at the site and this is worked out 
from the house sizes ie how many bedrooms it has. In this case as this is an outline 
application this is worked out differently. Para H.33 states 'When an application is 
received in ‘outline’, and the number and type of dwellings are unknown, the open 
space and provision for children and young people requirement will be estimated by 
applying a minimum density of 30 dwellings per hectare gross housing development 
and an assumed mix of 40% 2 beds, 40% 3 beds, 20% 4 beds. This will provide an 
initial guide to the likely requirements. The initial figure will be updated by a detailed 
calculation based on the number of dwellings, once a reserved matters application is 
submitted. A review mechanism will be included in the planning obligation to ensure 
that the appropriate modified calculation, based on the number and size of dwellings 
permitted, can be undertaken to achieve the appropriate contribution.' 
 
7.13  Using the formulas set out  the following provisions are therefore an estimate 
of what is required to guide the developer. 
 
Amenity green space / natural semi natural green space  
210 x 10 ( Sq per person) = 2100 sq m of amenity green space / natural semi natural 
green space is required-  on-site. If only a proportion can be met on site we need to 
seek contribution on that which is the remaining area multiplied by £23.75 which 
includes cost and maintenance costs.  This does not include gardens.  
 
Parks and gardens 
210 x 3 ( Sq per person)= 630 sq m of parks and gardens -multiplied by £103 (cost 
and maintenance cost of 5 years) = £64,890 is required for off site. To be secured 
via financial contribution through 106  
 
Play 
210 x 3 ( Sq per person) = 630 sq m of play – is to be provided on  site.  If only a 
proportion can be met on site we need to calculate residual and seek a contribution 
on that.  This would be the remaining area multiplied by £100 (cost and maintenance 
cost of 5 years) to be secured via financial contribution through 106 . 
 
 
7.14   As this application is at the outline stage, as set out above,  the open space 
provision is unable to be correctly calculated as the type and size of dwellings is 
unknown. These open space contributions can still however be secured within a 
s106 agreement with a mechanism to agree the total sum at the Reserved Matters 
stage. The applicant agrees with this approach and as such in this respect the 
proposal accords with Appendix H1 of the local plan and Policies Inf 5 and 6. 
 
Coastal Mitigation 
 
7.15  As this is a proposed residential development within 10km of the coast, 
consideration has been given to the impact of increased recreational 
disturbance to bird species that are interest features of the coastal SSSIs and 
European sites, and increased recreational pressure on dune grasslands 
which are similarly protected. 

Page 26



 

 
7.16  When developers apply for planning permission for new residential 
development within the coastal zone of influence, the Local Planning Authority 
has to fulfil its obligations under the Wildlife and Countryside Act (for SSSIs) 
and the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations (for SPAs, SACs 
and Ramsar Sites), by ensuring that the development will not have adverse 
impacts on designated sites. The Council has introduced a scheme whereby 
developers can pay a contribution into a strategic mitigation service which will 
be used to fund coastal wardens who will provide the necessary mitigation. 
 
7.17  Contribution to the Coastal Mitigation Service (CMS) enables a conclusion of 
no adverse effect on site integrity to be reached when a planning application 
is subject to appropriate assessment, without the developer having to 
commission any survey or mitigation work. Similarly it enables a conclusion of 
no adverse effect on the interest features of coastal SSSIs. The contribution 
for major developments (10 or more units) is set at £615 per unit within 7km of 
the coast. 
 
7.18  In this particular case the site lies within 7km distance from the relevant 
protected sites and as a result a contribution of £615 per dwelling is required, 
totalling £60,885. The applicant has agreed to pay this. The County Ecologist has 
therefore confirmed this will ensure that adequate mitigation will be provided to 
address increased recreational disturbance and damage within the coastal 
designated sites and so will enable the Council to reach a conclusion that there will 
be no adverse effect on site integrity in respect of this issue when undertaking the 
Habitats Regulations Assessment for this development. The proposal would 
therefore accord with Local Plan Policy ENV2 in this respect.  
 
Education 
 
7.19  The Education officer has confirmed that the development would require a 
contribution of £387,000 towards Astley High School (£288,000) and Sen provision 
(£99,000). The applicant has agreed to pay this contribution and as such the 
proposal would not have an unacceptable impact on Education provision, in 
accordance with Local Plan Policy Inf 6.   
 
7.20 Given comments raised at committee previously regarding capacity in the 
area the Education department did confirm that based on  last year's census and 
how many children they know were allocated into the intake year of the relevant 
School that: 
 
 

1. Seaton Delaval First School  is at 73% of their capacity and therefore well 
below the 95% threshold for a contribution assessment. 
 

2. Whytrig Middle School - is at 79% of their capacity, again well below the 
threshold for contribution assessment. 

 
3. Even if all the houses were completed in one go, they would add around 3 

pupils per year group, which would still mean both schools would be under 
capacity. There is also a capital project underway to rebuild Whytrig along 
with Astley High School funded by NCC. 

 

Page 27



 

Healthcare 
 
7.21  The Northumberland Clinical Commissioning group has confirmed that the 
development would require a contribution of £73,200 towards healthcare provision. 
The applicant has agreed to pay this contribution and as such the proposal would not 
have an unacceptable impact on Healthcare provision, in accordance with Local Plan 
Policy Inf 6. 
 
Design, Layout and Impact on Residential Amenity  
 
7.22  NLP Policy HOU 9 aims for residential development management to provide 
functional space and facilities for refuse and recycling storage which is appropriate 
for the development. The location and design of facilities should provide 
opportunities to screen or reduce their visual prominence, not impact upon amenity, 
health or security; Policies QOP1 and QOP2 sets out the design criteria for new 
proposals and to ensure development will be required to provide a high standard of 
amenity for existing and future users of the development itself and not cause 
unacceptable harm to the amenity of those living in, working in or visiting the local 
area.  
 
7.23  Policy Des1 of the Morpeth Neighbourhood Plan includes a list of criteria in 
terms of the design of new developments. Of particular relevance to this application, 
the policy states that proposals will be supported where: • The design and layout of 
the development achieves a sense of place by protecting and enhancing quality, 
distinctiveness and character of settlements; • Respecting or enhancing the 
character of the site and its surroundings in terms of its proportion, form, massing, 
density, height, size, scale, materials and detailed design features; • Ensuring the 
development safeguards, respects and enhances the natural environment, the 
biodiversity, landscape and wildlife corridors and the countryside; • Ensuring that the 
development does not cause an acceptable adverse impact on the amenities of 
occupiers of existing or proposed nearby properties; • Incorporating sustainable 
drainage systems. • These policies are consistent with the aims of the NPPF which 
has good design as one of the key aspects of sustainable development and which 
states that developments should respond to local character and history, and reflect 
the identity of local surroundings and materials.  
 
7.24  The application reserves matters including the scale, layout and appearance 
of the scheme and as such these matters would be dealt with at that stage. It  is 
considered however that the site could accommodate up to  99 dwellings and ensure 
there can be sufficient curtilage to achieve adequate space and privacy standards. In 
addition there is scope to provide appropriately designed dwellings to avoid 
impacting upon the visual amenity and character of the area. There will be issues to 
consider in terms of the layout and orientation of the properties and boundary 
treatments to help limit impact from the adjacent NHS factory to the north of the site. 
Although it is considered the design and through the use of conditions this impact 
can be limited. 
 
7.25  Policy QOP 4 also seeks landscaping design of high quality and aims to retain 
existing trees where unavoidable. In terms of landscaping it is considered that  an 
appropriate scheme could be designed to include tree planting around the site. This 
can be conditioned. There are a number of existing trees surrounding the site, 
particularly to the south and east but there are few trees within the red line. Those 
that are at the eastern end are immature and primarily comprise an outgrown 

Page 28



 

hawthorn hedge. Whilst no arboricultural impact assessment has been submitted at 
this stage, a condition can be attached to ensure one is submitted with the reserved 
matters application. In addition conditions can be attached to ensure all remaining 
trees in and to the edge of the site are protected throughout development. In 
accordance with the NPPF trees will also need to be planted along the streets . 
These details can also be shown on a landscape plan.  
 
7.26  Overall, it is considered that an acceptable quality of design and landscaping 
could be achieved which would be  acceptable in terms of their impact on the 
character and appearance of the area. In addition a layout could be designed to 
ensure that there is no overbearing impact of properties and the impact on the 
residential amenity of future  residents is acceptable in terms of loss of light, outlook 
and privacy. It is also considered the layout would not cause any impact to the 
existing residential amenity of occupants of existing nearby properties.  In this 
respect the proposal accords with Local Plan Policies HOU9 QOP1, QOP 2,4,6, 
ENV2 and the NPPF. 
 
 
Noise impact / conflict with the adjacent factory use 
 
7.27  Northumberland Local Plan Policy POL 2 states ‘Development proposals in 
locations where they would cause, or be put at unacceptable risk of harm from, or be 
adversely affected by pollution by virtue of the emissions of fumes, particles, effluent, 
radiation, smell, heat, light, noise or noxious substances will not be supported.... 
Development proposals that may cause pollution of water, air or soil, either 
individually or cumulatively, are required to incorporate measures to prevent or 
reduce their pollution so as not to cause nuisance or unacceptable impacts on the 
environment, people or biodiversity...... Where the operation of an existing business 
or community facility could have a significant adverse effect on a development 
proposal, the development proposal will be required to provide suitable mitigation.’ 
 
7.28   Paragraph 187 of the NPPF states ‘Planning policies and decisions should 
ensure that new development can be integrated effectively with existing businesses 
and community facilities (such as places of worship, pubs, music venues and sports 
clubs). Existing businesses and facilities should not have unreasonable restrictions 
placed on them as a result of development permitted after they were established. 
Where the operation of an existing business or community facility could have a 
significant adverse effect on new development (including changes of use) in its 
vicinity, the applicant (or ‘agent of change’) should be required to provide suitable 
mitigation before the development has been completed. 
 
7.29  In terms of the above, the application site lies adjacent to an allocated key 
general employment site where main employment uses are supported and in 
particular immediately adjacent are buildings occupied and used by the NHS. The 
proposed residential properties therefore have potential to be impacted upon by this 
adjacent employment use, which the NHS and objectors have raised concerns 
about. In particular their main concern, which it is also necessary to consider, is  how 
the occupiers of the employment site next door may be restricted as a result of the 
proposed development. Even if processes in the factory are currently compatible 
with the residential use being next door, the layout  should take account of future 
activities and the possibility that the premises may expand and a different 
employment use, may seek to occupy the building at a later date.  As set out above 
the NHS have submitted a letter of objection raising their concerns about this very 

Page 29



 

issue –the impact of future uses on residential amenity and the resulting potential for 
restrictions to be placed upon the Trust’s facility. It is considered noise impact is the 
main consideration in terms of residential impact given other Environmental Laws/ 
Regulations can control other impacts. Potential impact on Highways is discussed 
later on in the report. 
 
7.30  In respect of potential impact on and off the site Public Protection have 
therefore been consulted. With respect to noise, they have referred to an addendum 
report dated 11th October 2022 which had  been submitted with the previous 
application and had reported data from a live monitoring exercise in October 2022. 
The submission of this report  satisfies Public Protection that the proposed housing 
can be developed without a risk of significant harm to residential amenity – the 
dominant noise sources were identified as aircraft and the existing road network. 
Furthermore, the consultant  demonstrated that an increased use of the existing 
NHS site (as is permissible under Permitted Development) is compatible with the 
sensitive end-use proposed under this application. Public Protection  also  strongly 
encourage the applicant to commit at an early stage to an enhanced glazing / 
ventilation design (with greater sound insulation) on the most noise – sensitive 
façade of the scheme. This approach may add an additional and complimentary form 
of acoustic protection which would serve to further ensure that noise is mitigated and 
minimised to the greatest extent at all times (Paragraph 185 of the NPPF). Overall 
Public Protection have confirmed that the orientation of buildings and habitable 
rooms (to be secured at a Reserved Matters stage) & the positioning of an acoustic 
fence along the site boundary) satisfies the requirement of Paragraph 187 of the 
NPPF that the applicant (the “agent of change”) can provide suitable mitigation to 
ensure that the existing commercial use does not have unreasonable restrictions 
placed upon their activity. 
 
7.31  It must however also be noted that while the NHS could indeed extend their 
site through permitted uses and changes to other uses that fall within the same use 
class,  as above there are also other Environmental Laws that help protect the 
amenity and safety of nearby residents which currently restrict the NHS. In addition, 
there are also restrictions and conditions set out under Part 7 Class H of the Town 
and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015, 
which will also limit the scale of development at the NHS site  (ie, a building cannot 
be extended by more than 25% or 1,000 square metres (whichever is the lesser- and 
height restricted to 5m within 10m of the curtilage).  Previous applications at the NHS 
site also included the need for a noise assessment to be submitted (ie 14/02914/ 
Ful) with restrictions in place. Not withstanding the proposal,  should any changes 
require planning permission a noise impact assessment may be required to show the 
existing residential properties would not be impacted upon. So whilst the NHS are 
concerned, restrictions at this site will not solely be placed on the NHS from the 
proposed residential development but from existing residential properties around the 
site which could also be potentially impacted upon by any future changes at the NHS 
site too. The site is also already confined in an area which itself will restrict future 
growth.   
 
7.32 Public Protection have also commented on impact from lighting at the NHS 
site on future residents. They have been made aware of the NHS’s latest objection  
which sets out they have had their own lighting assessment carried out and that 
future residents would experience glare from the high columns light at night.  Public 
Protection however state that they disagree with the alleged risk of lighting that has 
been suggested.  

Page 30



 

 
7.33 Therefore in terms of noise impact from current and future activities at the 
NHS site,  it is considered that the impact of noise on residents from existing and 
future developments at the adjoining NHS site would be acceptable. In addition, the 
scheme would also not place unreasonable restrictions on the NHS.  In this respect, 
subject to any conditions proposed by Public Protection, the proposal would be in 
accordance with Local Plan Policies HOU9 and QOP2 and the NPPF.  
 
Highways  
 
7.34  This application is for outline consent, with all matters reserved, and therefore 
this assessment considers the principle of the development at this location and 
whether safe and suitable access for the scale of development proposed can be 
achieved. Exact details of the internal elements of the development site and detailed 
designs of access and connectivity would be sought through subsequent Reserved 
Matters application should this outline application be granted permission. As such 
whilst detailed technical drawings and Transport Assessment details were provided 
for review as part of the previous application for this site, it is recognised that this 
level of detail is not a validation requirement for outline planning applications. 
 
7.35 The application therefore has the potential to impact on highway safety, the 
highway network and parking, by virtue of its layout and vehicular movements to and 
from the development when built and through construction traffic. The Highway 
Authority have therefore been consulted and have undertaken a review of the 
information provided, including a transport statement and assessed the proposal 
based on information submitted, as well as on-site observations, local and national 
policy requirements and other material considerations.  
 
7.36 Highways have confirmed the application details show the redline boundary of 
the application site connects the development to the adopted highway at the existing 
roundabout on the A190 Avenue Road.  The access into the site will come directly 
from the access road to the NHS site too. A Transport Statement has also been 
provided, which provides direct responses to the items raised in Highways first 
comments, in relation to access arrangements, trip generation and assessment of 
flows and capacity. Appendix C of the submitted Transport Statement identifies that 
the development is to provide a staggered priority junction with the NHS access road 
serving the residential development and the NHS Trust site. Additionally, works are 
proposed to the NHS Trust site car park access in order to widen the access and 
amend the radii to accommodate the swept path of an articulated HGV where 
required. The information supplied also shows the distance between the 
junctions/accesses is proposed to be 24.3m and is to be achieved by locating the 
access to the residential site west towards the A190 roundabout. Highways state this 
further information presented in the Transport Statement satisfies the previously 
raised comment in relation to the interaction of the proposed development and 
access arrangements with the existing access point to the NHS Trust site at this 
outline application stage and further assessment can be provided as part of the 
Reserved Matters application, should this application be granted permission. 
   
7.37  Highways also note that the proposed access arrangements to the residential 
site in relation to the access for the NHS Trust site car park have been reviewed by 
external officers and the proposals have been through the formal Road Safety Audit 
process, to which the assessment and outcomes have been principally accepted by 
the Local Highway Authority.  In addition the Transport Statement for this application 

Page 31



 

also included modelling  which takes into account future development at  the NHS 
site and with the residential development  in place – and this concludes  there would 
not be a major change to queuing at the roundabout and junctions  if the NHS 
building was in full use and residential development in place. As such Highways 
have taken into account future development. Should any further applications be 
submitted too, these would also be assessed at the time by the Highways Authority. 
 
7.38 Whilst concern has been raised with regard to the impact of the proposal on 
the highway network and by the NHS in terms of the access into the site, and the 
Highway Authority have been made aware of these objections, the Highway 
Authority have still confirmed that this development will not have a severe impact on 
highway safety, and there are no objections in principle to the proposals. They state 
it is recognised that this application is outline with all matters reserved, and therefore 
the level of information provided at this stage is proportionate to the type of planning 
application in relation to details of safe and suitable access arrangements to the site. 
Highways have not requested any further recommended amendments to the scheme  
as part of this outline planning application. Overall and finally Highways have no 
objection to the proposal and consider that the imposition of conditions and 
informatives as detailed below will address any highways concerns with the 
proposed development.  
 
7.39  Overall, the proposals are therefore now considered acceptable on highways 
grounds and as such in this respect the proposal is in accordance with the NPPF 
and Local Plan Policies Policy TRA –1 and TRA 2.  Exact details (those matters 
which are currently reserved – appearance, means of access, landscaping, layout 
and scale), including parking details,  will be sought through subsequent Reserved 
Matters application should this outline application be granted permission. 
 
7.40 Whilst concern was raised about the removal of the ‘new car park for 
increased staff parking’ on the application site that formed part of the Planning 
Application for the packing hall extension, under Reference 14/02914/ Ful, this was 
required by Proctor and Gamble who were the former occupier of the site next door 
which is now used by the NHS. The requirements at the site have therefore changed 
under new ownership. Should any future proposals require assessment by the LPA 
parking would be assessed.  
 
Flood Risk/Drainage 
 
7.41  The Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) who assess the proposal in terms of 
impact of surface water run off and potential impact of flooding from the site, 
have no objection to the proposal subject to conditions. In light of these comments, 
the proposal is considered to be in accordance with NLP Policies  WAT 3 and 4 
which deal with Flooding and Sustainable Drainage Systems. Final drainage details 
would be submitted under a reserved matters application and at that stage 
Northumbrian Water would also be consulted.  
 
Ecology 
 
7.42  The County Ecologist, who assesses the proposal in terms of impact upon 
biodiversity, protected species and protected sites has considered the submitted 
Ecological Appraisal and has no objection to the proposal subject to conditions which 
will help to maintain and enhance biodiversity. Subject to these the proposal would 

Page 32



 

accord with the NPPF and Local Plan Policy ENV2 which seeks to protect and 
enhance biodiversity and geodiversity. 
 
Archaeology 
 
7.43  The proposed development site has potential to retain significant unrecorded 
archaeological remains. The County Archaeologist has therefore been consulted. 
They have confirmed that the application site was subject to a programme of 
archaeological work undertaken to inform application 21/02285/FUL. The results of 
which are pertinent to the present application. A programme of archaeological 
evaluation (trial trenching) was undertaken on site which identified that much of the 
site had been disturbed in the modern period, including via site levelling in advance 
of the playing field construction. Previous phases of archaeological assessment had 
identified cropmark features of potential archaeological origin although no trace of 
these cropmark features was identified. No significant archaeological remains were 
recorded by the evaluation exercise. Given the negative results of the recent 
evaluation, the County Archaeologist has no objections to the proposed development 
on archaeological grounds and confirms no archaeological work is recommended. 
Overall and in conclusion it is therefore considered that the proposals impact on 
heritage assets is acceptable and in accordance with Local Plan Policy ENV7. 
 
Contamination 
 
7.44  The site is situated within the Northumberland Coal Field with outcrop 
features also being present within Seaton Delaval. Public Protection have confirmed 
that ‘in accordance with Northumberland County Councils Planning Contaminated 
Land Procedure it is proportionate and necessary to require gas protection measures 
at this site. Conditions to control noise and dust during the construction phase are 
proportionate to protect residential amenity of Newburgh Avenue. In addition, onsite 
contamination associated with a track and compound has been identified and it is 
essential that a sufficient remediation strategy and verification report is submitted to 
protect future site users.’ Public Protection therefore have no objection to the 
proposal on these grounds subject to conditions which will help to protect future and 
existing residents from contamination. Subject to these conditions the proposal 
would be acceptable and in accordance with Local Plan Policy Pol1.  
 
 
Equality Duty 
  
The County Council has a duty to have regard to the impact of any proposal on 
those people with characteristics protected by the Equality Act. Officers have had 
due regard to Sec 149(1) (a) and (b) of the Equality Act 2010 and considered the 
information provided by the applicant, together with the responses from consultees 
and other parties, and determined that the proposal would have no material impact 
on individuals or identifiable groups with protected characteristics. Accordingly, no 
changes to the proposal were required to make it acceptable in this regard. 
  
Crime and Disorder Act Implications 
 
These proposals have no implications in relation to crime and disorder. 
  
Human Rights Act Implications 
 

Page 33



 

The Human Rights Act requires the County Council to take into account the rights of 
the public under the European Convention on Human Rights and prevents the 
Council from acting in a manner which is incompatible with those rights. Article 8 of 
the Convention provides that there shall be respect for an individual's private life and 
home save for that interference which is in accordance with the law and necessary in 
a democratic society in the interests of (inter alia) public safety and the economic 
wellbeing of the country. Article 1 of protocol 1 provides that an individual's peaceful 
enjoyment of their property shall not be interfered with save as is necessary in the 
public interest. 
 
For an interference with these rights to be justifiable the interference (and the means 
employed) needs to be proportionate to the aims sought to be realised. The main 
body of this report identifies the extent to which there is any identifiable interference 
with these rights. The Planning Considerations identified are also relevant in 
deciding whether any interference is proportionate. Case law has been decided 
which indicates that certain development does interfere with an individual's rights 
under Human Rights legislation. This application has been considered in the light of 
statute and case law and the interference is not considered to be disproportionate. 
 
Officers are also aware of Article 6, the focus of which (for the purpose of this 
decision) is the determination of an individual's civil rights and obligations. Article 6 
provides that in the determination of these rights, an individual is entitled to a fair and 
public hearing within a reasonable time by an independent and impartial tribunal. 
Article 6 has been subject to a great deal of case law. It has been decided that for 
planning matters the decision making process as a whole, which includes the right of 
review by the High Court, complied with Article 6. 
 
8.  Conclusion 
 
8.1  The objections raised have all been taken into account in the assessment of 
this application. For the above reasons however it is considered that the proposal is 
acceptable. 
 
 
9.  Recommendation 
 
That this application be GRANTED permission subject to a Section 106 agreement 
securing Affordable Housing on site and contributions of £387,000 towards 
education facilities, £73,200 towards healthcare,  £60,885 towards coastal Mitigation 
and contributions towards amenity green space,  parks and gardens, and play for 
children and young people 
 
 
Conditions 
 
01. Approval of the details of the access, layout, scale, appearance and 
landscaping hereinafter called the reserved matters shall be obtained from the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To comply with Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as 
amended) 
 

Page 34



 

02. Application for the approval of all the reserved matters shall be made to the 
Local Planning Authority before the expiration of three years from the date of this 
permission. 
 
Reason: To comply with Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as 
amended) 
 
03. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 
two years from the date of approval of the last of the reserved matters to be 
approved. 
 
Reason: To comply with Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as 
amended) 
 
04. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in complete 
accordance with the approved plans and documents. The approved plans and 
documents for this development are:-  
 
Location Plan and appraisal 
Zonal Housing Masterplan OP2C received and uploaded 7/6/23 
 
Reason: To ensure that the approved development is carried out in complete 
accordance with the approved plans. 
 
05. Prior to the commencement of development a detailed landscaping scheme, 
showing both hard and soft landscaping proposals, shall be submitted to, and 
approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority.  This shall include,  the planting 
of trees and shrubs including a planting schedule setting out species, numbers, 
densities and locations, the provision of screen walls or fences, the mounding of 
earth, the creation of areas of hardstanding, pathways, etc, areas to be seeded with 
grass, and other works or proposals for improving the appearance of the 
development.  The scheme shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 
drawings not later than the expiry of the next planting season following 
commencement of the development, or within such other time as may be approved 
with the Local Planning Authority. The landscaped areas shall be subsequently 
maintained to ensure establishment of the approved scheme, including watering, 
weeding and the replacement of any plants, or areas of seeding or turfing comprised 
in the approved landscaping plans, which fail within a period up to 5 years from the 
completion of the development. 
 
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and the satisfactory appearance of the 
development upon completion, and in accordance with Northumberland Local Plan 
Policies HOU9, QOP4 and ENV2. 
 
 
06. No development shall take place until a landscape scheme for a tree and 
shrub screen planting belt  along the north  boundary(s) of the site has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter this 
screen planting shall be implemented in the first planting season following 
commencement of development and before the first occupation  or within such other 
time as may be approved with the Local Planning Authority in writing beforehand. 
The screen planting shall be maintained in accordance with a maintenance schedule 
which shall first be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and any trees 

Page 35



 

or shrubs which are removed or found to be dead, dying or diseased shall be 
replaced with similar species during a period of five years following the completion of 
the screen planting scheme. 
 
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and the satisfactory appearance of the 
development upon completion, and in accordance with Northumberland Local Plan 
Policies HOU9, QOP4 and ENV2. 
 
07. All trees and hedges within, and to the boundaries, of the site identified on 
either the approved tree survey or the approved application plans as being retained, 
shall be retained and protected throughout the course of development in accordance 
with a detailed scheme of works which shall first be submitted to, and approved in 
writing by, the Local Planning Authority. These measures shall be implemented in 
complete accordance with the approved scheme and shall remain in place 
throughout the course of the construction of the development, unless otherwise 
approved in writing with the Local Planning Authority.  Any trees or hedges removed 
without the written consent of the Local Planning Authority, or dying or being 
severely damaged or becoming seriously diseased before the completion of 
development or up to 12 months after occupation of the last dwelling shall be 
replaced with trees or hedging of such size, species in a timescale and in positions 
as may be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason: To ensure the protection of existing trees and hedges in the interests of 
visual amenity iand in accordance with Northumberland Local Plan Policies HOU9, 
QOP4 and ENV2. 
 
08. The reserved matters to be submitted under Condition 1 shall include a 
schedule of the types and colours of all materials to be used on the external 
elevations of the proposed development.  The development shall thereafter be 
carried out in full accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason: In the interests of the satisfactory appearance of the development upon 
completion and in accordance with the provisions of  and in accordance with 
Northumberland Local Plan Policies HOU9, QOP1 and 2.  
 
09. The reserved matters application to be submitted under condition 1 shall 
include  a full arboricultural impact assessment,   in accordance with the guidance 
set out in BS5837:2012 Trees in Relation to Design, Demolition and Development: 
Recommendations British Standards Institution, 2012, and it shall also include a tree 
and hedge protection plan. 
 
Reason: In the interests of protecting biodiversity in the form of trees and hedgerows 
on site, in accordance with Policies QOP4  and  ENV2 of the Northumberland Local 
Plan and the NPPF. 
 
10. Prior to occupation of any dwelling within any phase of the development 
hereby approved a detailed Open Space and Landscape Management and 
Maintenance Scheme for the maintenance and management of all areas of open 
space within that phase shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The approved scheme shall be implemented in full upon the 
substantial completion of the landscaping works in that phase (or as may otherwise 
be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority). Details to be submitted shall 
include;  

Page 36



 

 
i) Details of landscape management and maintenance plans;  
ii) Inspection, repair and maintenance of all hard landscaping and structures;  
iii) Management, monitoring and operational restrictions including details regarding 
timescales for transfer of open space areas to a management company or 
companies and details regarding public access arrangements to those areas;  
iv) Establish a procedure that would be implemented in the event of any tree (or 
other item of soft landscaping) being removed, uprooted/ destroyed or dying which 
shall ensure that any soft landscaping removed, dying or becoming seriously 
damaged, defective or diseased within 5 years from the substantial completion of 
development in that phase shall be replaced within the next planting season with soft 
landscaping of a similar size and species to that which it is replacing.  
 
The open space areas provided shall be retained for their intended purpose at all 
times thereafter unless otherwise is approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  
 
Reason: To ensure appropriate maintenance and management of open space 
having regard to Northumberland Local Plan Policy QOP 1 and Env1 of the Morpeth 
Neighbourhood Plan. 
 
11. The development shall not be occupied until details of the proposed boundary 
treatment have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The approved details shall be implemented before the development is 
occupied.  
  
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity and highway safety, in accordance with 
the National Planning Policy Framework and Northumberland Local Plan Policies 
HOU9 and QOP2. 
 
 
12. Prior to the commencement of the permitted use, a scheme for a continuous 
acoustic barrier constructed along the northern boundary of the site , of a minimum 
height of 1.8 metres measured from the ground level and minimum surface density 
of 10 kg/m2 shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local planning 
authority. All works which form part of the approved scheme shall be completed 
before the first residential occupation. The barrier shall be retained throughout the 
life of the development.  
 
Reason: To protect the amenities of residents with respect to noise. In accordance 
with the provisions of Northumberland Local Plan Policies QOP2 and POL2.   
 
13.  During the construction period, there should be no noisy activity, i.e. audible 
at the site boundary, on Sundays or Bank Holidays or outside the hours:  
 
Monday to Friday - 0800 to 1800,  
Saturday 0800 to 1300.  
 
Reason: To protect residential amenity and provide a commensurate level of 
protection against noise. In accordance with the provisions of Northumberland Local 
Plan Policies QOP2 and POL2.   
 

Page 37



 

14.  Deliveries to and collections from the demolition and/or construction phase of 
the development shall only be permitted between the hours: Monday to Friday - 
08:00 to 18:00 Saturday - 08:00 to 13:00  
With no deliveries or collections on a Sunday or Bank Holiday, unless agreed in 
writing with the LPA.  
 
Reason: To protect residential amenity and provide a commensurate level of 
protection against noise. In accordance with the provisions of Northumberland Local 
Plan Policies QOP2 and POL2.   
 
15. No development shall commence, including any works of demolition, until a 
written dust management plan has been submitted and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The agreed plan shall be implemented for the duration of 
the site works and shall include measures for the control and reduction 
of dust emissions associated with demolition, earthworks, construction and track out, 
dealing with complaints of dust and arrangements for monitoring air quality during 
construction. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the plan so 
agreed.   
 
Reason: To ensure a commensurate level of protection against windblown dust and 
debris.  In accordance with the provisions of Northumberland Local Plan Policies 
QOP2 and POL2.   
 
16.  No building shall be constructed until a report detailing the protective 
measures to prevent the ingress of ground gases, including depleted Oxygen 
(<19%), to the CS2 standard specified in BS8485:2015 (Code of Practice for the 
design of protective measures for Methane and Carbon Dioxide ground gases for 
new buildings) have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The aforementioned report must also detail to the Local Planning 
Authority’s satisfaction how the annulus of service ducts will be sealed to prevent 
gas ingress into the living space of the dwelling. Furthermore, the report shall contain 
full details of the validation and verification assessment to be undertaken on the 
installed ground gas protection, as detailed in CIRIA C735 (Good practice on the 
testing and verification of protection systems for buildings against hazardous ground 
gases)      
 
Reason:  In order to prevent any accumulation of ground gas, which may potentially 
be prejudicial to the health & amenity of the occupants of the respective properties. 
In accordance with the provisions of Northumberland Local Plan Policy POL1 
 
17.   No building shall be brought into use or occupied until the applicant has 
submitted a validation and verification report to the approved methodology in 
Condition 16 which has been approved in writing by the LPA.   
 
Reason:  In order to prevent any accumulation of ground gas, which may potentially 
be prejudicial to the amenity of the occupants of the respective properties. In 
accordance with the provisions of Northumberland Local Plan Policy POL1. 
 
18. If during redevelopment contamination not previously considered within any 
statement / report that has received the approval of the Local Planning Authority is 
identified, then a written Method Statement regarding this material shall be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority – the written method 
statement must be written by a competent person.  No building shall be occupied 

Page 38



 

until a method statement has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority, and measures proposed to deal with the contamination have 
been carried out.  
 
[Should no contamination be found during development then the applicant shall 
submit a signed statement indicating this to discharge this condition].   
 
 “Competent Person” has the same definition as defined within the National Planning 
Policy Framework (NPPF) 2021     
 
Reason:    To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 
land and dwellings are minimised and to ensure that the development can be carried 
out safely without unacceptable risks to any future occupants.   In accordance with 
the provisions of Northumberland Local Plan Policy POL1 
 
19.  A written Remediation Strategy report detailing the remediation requirements 
for the land contamination and/or pollution of controlled waters affecting the site shall 
be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The Remediation 
Strategy Report must provide sufficient detail as to how the contamination identified 
within the approved report “Phase II Geo-Environmental Site Assessment Ergo 
Environmental 20-641-01/Rev B September 2020” will be remediated to protect 
future site occupants. The report must demonstrate that the soil in landscaped areas 
from the surface down to a minimum depth of 600 millimetres will provide a suitable 
growing medium as defined within BS 3882:2015. All requirements shall be 
implemented and completed to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. No 
deviation shall be made from this scheme without express written agreement of the 
Local Planning Authority.  
 
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land 
and dwellings are minimised and to ensure that the development can be carried out 
safely without unacceptable risks to any future occupants. In accordance with the 
provisions of Northumberland Local Plan Policy POL1. 
 
20.  The development hereby permitted shall not be brought into use or continue 
in use until two full copies of a full closure (Verification Report) report shall be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The report shall provide 
verification that the required works regarding contamination have been carried out in 
accordance with the approved Remediation Strategy Report. Post remediation 
sampling and monitoring results shall be included in the closure report to 
demonstrate that the required remediation has been fully met.  
 
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land 
and dwellings are minimised and to ensure that the development can be carried out 
safely without unacceptable risks to any future occupants. In accordance with the 
provisions of Northumberland Local Plan Policy POL1. 
 
 
21.  No development shall take place (including demolition, ground works, 
vegetation clearance) until a Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP: 
Biodiversity) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority. The CEMP (Biodiversity) shall provide the means by which the mitigation 
detailed in the report Preliminary Ecological Appraisal Land at Avenue Road, Seaton 
Delaval, Tyne Ecology April 2023 are implemented during construction. Suitable tree 

Page 39



 

protection measures must also be included. This will include any required checking 
surveys for protected species and the involvement of an Ecological Clerk of Works 
(ECOW). The CEMP (Biodiversity) shall include the following  
 
a) Risk assessment of potentially damaging construction activities. 
 
 b) Identification of “biodiversity protection zones” including fencing to the woodland 
buffer.  
 
c) Practical measures (both physical measures and sensitive working practices) to 
avoid or reduce impacts during construction (may be provided as a set of method 
statements).  
 
d) The location and timing of sensitive works to avoid harm to biodiversity features. 
 
e) The times during construction when specialist ecologists need to be present on 
site to oversee works. 
 
 f) Responsible persons and lines of communication.  
 
g) The role and responsibilities on site of an ecological clerk of works (ECoW) or 
similarly competent person.  
 
h) Use of protective fences, exclusion barriers and warning signs. The approved 
CEMP shall be adhered to and implemented throughout the construction period 
strictly in accordance with the approved details, unless otherwise agreed in writing 
by the local planning authority. 
 
Reason: To maintain the biodiversity value of the site to protected species and 
habitats in accordance with Policy ENV2 of the Northumberland Local Plan and the 
NPPF. 
 
22.  No development will take place until a Biodiversity Enhancement Plan has 
been submitted to the LPA for approval in writing. This will include integrated bat and 
bird boxes at a ratio of 1 per dwelling, hedgehog gaps/hedgehog highway between 
garden boundary fences and site boundary fences, and landscaping using native 
species and plants for pollinators. The details will thereafter be fully implemented as 
approved.  
 
Reason: To maintain the biodiversity value of the site to protected species and 
habitats in accordance with Policy ENV2 of the Northumberland Local Plan and the 
NPPF. 
 
23.  Development shall not commence until a Construction Method Statement, 
together with a supporting plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The approved Construction Method Statement shall be 
adhered to throughout the construction period. The Construction Method Statement 
and plan shall, where applicable, provide for: 
i. details of temporary traffic management measures, temporary access, routes and 
vehicles; 
ii. vehicle cleaning facilities; 
iii. the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors; 
iv. the loading and unloading of plant and materials; 

Page 40



 

v. storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development 
vi. Condition survey of the A190 Roundabout, junction onto the A190 & internal 
access road leading up to the site access 
vii. Details of the size and number of HGV’s associated with the construction phase 
of the development. 
 
Reason: To prevent nuisance in the interests of residential amenity and highway 
safety, in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy TRA2 
of the Northumberland Local Plan.   
 
24.  No development above damp-proof course level shall commence until details 
of proposed arrangements for future management and maintenance of the proposed 
streets within the site have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Following occupation of the first dwelling on the site, the streets 
shall be maintained in accordance with the approved management and maintenance 
details. 
 
Reasons: To ensure estate streets serving the development are completed in the 
interests of residential amenity and highway safety, in accordance with the National 
Planning Policy Framework and Policies TRA1 and TRA2 of the Northumberland 
Local Plan. 
 
25.      No works to the streets proposed for adoption shall commence until full 
engineering, drainage, street lighting and constructional details of the streets 
proposed for adoption have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Thereafter, the development shall be constructed in accordance 
with the approved details, unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority.  
 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to safeguard the amenities of the 
locality and users of the highway in accordance with the National Planning Policy 
Framework and Policies TRA1 and TRA2 of the Northumberland Local Plan. 
 
26.       No part of the development shall be occupied until details of street trees have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
approved street trees shall be implemented prior to first occupation. Thereafter, the 
street trees shall be incorporated to the management strategy.   
 
 Reason: In the interests of highway safety and sustainable development, in 
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy TRA1 of the 
Northumberland Local Plan. 
 
27  No dwelling shall be occupied until details of the car parking area have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and 
implemented in accordance with the approved details. Thereafter, the car parking 
area shall be retained in accordance with the approved details.  
 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety, in accordance with the National Planning 
Policy Framework and Policy TRA4 of the Northumberland Local Plan. 
 
 

Page 41



 

28.   The development shall not be occupied until a means of vehicular access to 
the site has been constructed in accordance with the approved plans and NCC 
standards and specifications. 
 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety, in accordance with the National Planning 
Policy Framework and Policy TRA2 of the Northumberland Local Plan. 
  
29. Development shall not be occupied until details of the proposed highway 
works including: -   
1. Full details on the pedestrian crossing upgrade on the A190 roundabout.  
2. Full details on the proposed pedestrian footway on the Eastern side of the 
above crossing point 
3. Full details of a new pedestrian crossing facility on the A190 to Prospect 
Avenue.  
4. Bus stop upgrade works (level access kerbing) on both stops on the A190 to 
the north-east of the main site access.  
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
building(s) shall not be occupied until the highway works have been constructed in 
accordance with the approved plans. 
 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety, in accordance with the National Planning 
Policy Framework and Policy TRA2 of the Northumberland Local Plan. 
 
 
30. No dwelling shall be occupied until details of cycle parking have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved 
cycle parking shall be implemented before each dwelling is occupied. Thereafter, the 
cycle parking shall be retained in accordance with the approved details and shall be 
kept available for the parking of cycles at all times. 
 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and sustainable development, in 
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework and Policy TRA1 of the 
Northumberland Local Plan. 
 
 
31. The development shall not be occupied until details of a Framework Travel 
Plan in respect of each of the occupiers of any building on the application site have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. At all 
times thereafter the approved Framework Travel Plan shall be implemented in 
accordance with the approved details. This Framework Travel Plan must include: 
 the contact details of a suitably qualified Travel Plan Co-ordinator; 
 an implementation programme; 
 an on-site assessment including details of transport links to the site, on-site 
facilities and any transport issues and problems; 
 clearly defined aims and objectives in relation to travel modes; and 
 clearly defined senior management and staff responsibilities and roles in the 
implementation of the Framework Travel Plan. 
  
Reason: In the interests of Sustainable Development, in accordance with the 
National Planning Policy Framework and Policies TRA1 and TRA2 of the 
Northumberland Local Plan. 
 
 

Page 42



 

32.  Twelve months after first occupation of the development details of a Full 
Travel Plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. At all times thereafter the approved Full Travel Plan shall be implemented 
in accordance with the approved details. This Full Travel Plan must include: 

i. details of and results from an initial staff travel to work survey; 
ii. clearly specified ongoing targets for staff travel mode shares; 
iii. a plan for monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of the Full Travel Plan; 

and 
iv. a scheme providing for a biennial monitoring report to be submitted to the 

Local Planning Authority regarding the implementation of the Full Travel Plan. 
 
Reason: In the interests of Sustainable Development, in accordance with the 
National Planning Policy Framework and Policies TRA1 and TRA2 of the 
Northumberland Local Plan.  
 
33. Prior to occupation details of Electric Vehicle Charging shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved electric 
vehicle charging points shall be implemented before the development is occupied. 
Thereafter, the electric vehicle charging points shall be retained in accordance with 
the approved details and shall be kept available for the parking of electric vehicles at 
all times. 
 
Reason: In the interests of Sustainable Development, in accordance with the 
National Planning Policy Framework and Policy TRA1 of the Northumberland Local 
Plan.  
  
34. No dwelling shall be occupied until details of refuse storage facilities and a 
refuse storage strategy for the development have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details shall include the location and 
design of the facilities and arrangements for the provision of the bins. The approved 
refuse storage facilities shall be implemented before the development is brought into 
use. Thereafter the refuse storage facilities and refuse storage plan shall operate in 
accordance with approved details. 
 
Reason: To ensure sufficient and suitable facilities are provided for the storage and 
collection of household waste in accordance with the National Planning Policy 
Framework and Policies TRA1 and TRA2 of the Northumberland Local Plan. 
 
35. Additional infiltration testing shall be carried out during the months of 
December and January to ensure groundwater levels in the location of the basin are 
consistent with previous findings. Should groundwater be found within 1m of the 
base of the basin, the basin shall need to be lined with clay and modelling 
undertaken removing any allowance for infiltration. The basin shall be designed with 
a 300mm freeboard between the top 2 water level during the 100 year + climate 
change storm event and the lowest point on the basin's perimeter.  
 
Reason: To ensure the effective operation of the attenuation basin. In accordance 
with Northumberland Local Plan Policies Wat 3 and 4. 
 
 

Page 43



 

36. Prior to first occupation an assessment into the structural integrity of the 
proposed SuDS basin shall be undertaken. This assessment shall ensure the 
structural integrity of the drainage system and any adjacent structures or 
infrastructure under anticipate loading conditions over the design life of the 
development taking into account the requirement for reasonable levels of 
maintenance.  
 
Reason: To ensure the basin is structurally secure, limiting the possibility of any 
breaching. In accordance with Northumberland Local Plan Policies Wat 3 and 4. 
 
 
37. Prior to first occupation details of the adoption and maintenance of all SuDS 
features shall be submitted to and agreed by the Local Planning Authority. A 
maintenance schedule and log, which includes details for all SuDS features for the 
lifetime of development shall be composed within and be implemented forthwith in 
perpetuity.  
 
Reason: To ensure that the scheme to dispose of surface water operates at its full 
potential throughout the development’s lifetime. In accordance with Northumberland 
Local Plan Policies Wat 3 and 4. 
 
 
38.  Details of the disposal of surface water from the development through the 
construction phase shall be submitted to and agreed with the Local Planning 
Authority.  
 
Reason: To ensure the risk of flooding does not increase during this phase and to 
limit the siltation of any on site surface water features. In accordance with 
Northumberland Local Plan Policies Wat 3 and 4. 
 
 
39.  Prior to the first occupation of the development, a verification report carried 
out by a qualified drainage engineer or a suitably qualified professional must be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, to demonstrate that all 
sustainable drainage systems have been constructed as per the agreed scheme. 
This verification report shall include: * As built drawings for all SuDS components - 
including dimensions (base levels, inlet/outlet elevations, areas, depths, lengths, 
diameters, gradients etc); * Construction details (component drawings, materials, 
vegetation); *Photographs of the surface water system being installed as per the 
agreed scheme including flow controls, storage structures and any other SuDS 
components. * Health and Safety file; and * Details of ownership 
organisation/adoption details.  
 
Reason:  To ensure that all sustainable drainage systems are designed to the 
DEFRA non technical standards. In accordance with Northumberland Local Plan 
Policies Wat 3 and 4. 
 
 
40.  The development hereby permitted shall not be commenced until such time 
as a scheme for surface water management, including a timetable for the 
implementation of the scheme, has been submitted to, and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. The development shall thereafter be carried out in 
accordance with the agreed details and timetable.  

Page 44



 

 
Reason: To ensure the effective disposal of surface water runoff from the 
development. In accordance with Northumberland Local Plan Policies Wat 3 and 4. 
 
41.  Prior to commencement of development a scheme to dispose of surface water 
from the development shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. This scheme shall: 
 
 i. Restrict discharge from the development to 12.9l/s for all rainfall events up to and 
including the 1 in 100 year event, unless otherwise agreed by LLFA and the local 
planning authority. 
 
 ii. Adhere to the principles as set out in the drainage strategyZonal Housing Master 
Plan Rev C dated 08/06/2023 produced by Mcbeth Design  
 
Iii. Provide attenuation on site for the 1 in 100 year plus climate change event. iv. 
Incorporate vegetated sustainable drainage techniques throughout the development 
wherever possible and practicable, justification for alternatives should be by means 
of a viability assessment.  
 
v. Incorporate permeable driveways throughout the development wherever possible 
and practicable, justification for alternatives should be by means of a viability 
assessment. The development shall thereafter be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details.  
 
Reason: To ensure the effective disposal of surface water from the development. In 
accordance with Northumberland Local Plan Policies Wat 3 and 4. 
 
 
 
Informatives 
 
1) Public Footpath No. 152 shall be protected throughout. No action should be taken 
to disturb the path surface, without prior consent from ourselves as Highway 
Authority, obstruct the path or in any way prevent or deter public use without the 
necessary temporary closure or Diversion Order having been made, confirmed and 
an acceptable alternative route provided. 
 
2)Highways 
 
INFO35 Section 38 Agreement and adoption of highways 
You are advised to contact the Council’s Highway Development Management team 
at highwaysplanning@northumberland.gov.uk concerning the need for a Section 38 
Agreement of the Highway Act 1980 relating to the adoption of new highways. 
 
INFO28 Section 278 Agreement and works in adopted highway 
You are advised that offsite highway works required in connection with this permission 
are under the control of the Council’s Technical Services Division and will require an 
agreement under section 278 of the Highway Act 1980. These works should be carried 
out before first occupation of the development. All such works will be undertaken by 
the Council at the applicant’s expense. You should 
contact Highway Development Management at 
highwaysplanning@northumberland.gov.uk to progress this matter. 

Page 45

mailto:highwaysplanning@northumberland.gov.uk
mailto:highwaysplanning@northumberland.gov.uk


 

  
INFO29 Highway condition survey 
You should note that a highway condition survey should be carried out before the 
commencement of demolition and construction vehicle movements from this site. To 
arrange a survey contact Highway Development Management at 
highwaysplanning@northumberland.gov.uk 
  
INFO33 Reminder to not store building material or equipment on the highway  
Building materials or equipment shall not be stored on the highway unless otherwise 
agreed. You are advised to contact the Streetworks team on 0345 600 6400 for 
Skips and Containers licences 
  
INFO35 Contact Lighting Section 
You are advised to contact the Council’s Lighting Section on 
HighwaysStreetLighting@northumberland.gov.uk before and during the construction 
period with respect of street lighting to ensure sufficient illumination levels of the 
public highway 
  
INFO37 Contact Local Highway Authority - Management and Maintenance of 
Estate Streets  
The applicant is advised that to discharge condition HWD11 the Local Planning 
Authority requires a copy of a completed agreement between the applicant and the 
Local Highway Authority under Section 38 of the Highways Act 1980 or the 
constitution and details of a Private Management and Maintenance Company 
confirming funding, management and maintenance regimes. You can contact 
Highway Development Management at highwaysplanning@northumberland.gov.uk. 
  
INFO38 Contact Local Highway Authority - Submission of details of adoptable 
streets  
The applicant is advised to obtain a technical approval for all estate street details 
from the Local Highway Authority prior to the submission of such approved details to 
the Local Planning Authority to discharge condition HWD12 of this permission. You 
can contact the Highway Development Management at 
highwaysplanning@northumberland.gov.uk. 
  
INFO40 Reminder to not deposit mud/ debris/rubbish on the highway 
In accordance with the Highways Act 1980 mud, debris or rubbish shall not be 
deposited on the highway. 
  
INFO41 Road Safety Audits  
You should note that Road Safety Audits are required to be undertaken. 
Northumberland County Council offers this service. You should contact 
highwaysplanning@northumberland.gov.uk or 01670 622979 
  
Street Naming 
You are advised that to ensure that all new properties and streets are registered with 
the emergency services, Land Registry, National Street Gazetteer and National Land 
and Property Gazetteer to enable them to be serviced and allow the occupants 
access to amenities including but not limited to; listing on the Electoral Register, 
delivery services, and a registered address on utility companies databases, details of 
the name and numbering of any new house(s) and/or flats/flat conversion(s) on 
existing and/or newly constructed streets must be submitted to the Highway 
Authority.  

Page 46

mailto:highwaysplanning@northumberland.gov.uk
mailto:HighwaysStreetLighting@northumberland.gov.uk
mailto:highwaysplanning@northumberland.gov.uk
mailto:highwaysplanning@northumberland.gov.uk
mailto:highwaysplanning@northumberland.gov.uk


 

Any new street(s) and property naming/numbering must be agreed in accordance with 
the Councils Street Naming and Property Numbering Policy and all address allocations 
can only be issued under the Town Improvement Clauses Act 1847 (Section 64 & 65) 
and the Public Health Act 1925 (Section 17, 18 & 19). 
 
 
Date of Report: 9/6/23 
 
Background Papers: Planning application file(s) 23/00584/OUT 
  
 
 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

Appeal 
Update Report 
Date: June 2023 

Planning Appeals 
Report of the Director of Planning 

Cabinet Member: Councillor CW Horncastle 

 

Purpose of report 
For Members’ information to report the progress of planning appeals.  This is a monthly 
report and relates to appeals throughout all 5 Local Area Council Planning Committee 
areas and covers appeals of Strategic Planning Committee.     

Recommendations 
To note the contents of the report in respect of the progress of planning appeals that have 
been submitted to and determined by the Planning Inspectorate. 

Link to Corporate Plan  
This report is relevant to all of the priorities included in the NCC Corporate Plan 2018-2021 
where identified within individual planning applications and appeals. 

Key issues  
Each planning application and associated appeal has its own particular set of individual 
issues and considerations that have been taken into account in their determination, which 
are set out within the individual application reports and appeal decisions. 

Page 49

Agenda Item 8



 

Recent Planning Appeal Decisions 
Planning Appeals Allowed (permission granted) 

Reference No Proposal and main planning considerations Award of 
costs? 

22/03313/AGTRES Prior notification for change of use and conversion of 
agricultural building to single dwelling – The March 
Barn, Welton 

Main issues: the proposal involves significant building 
operations that go beyond what is reasonably 
necessary to convert the building and therefore it is 
not permitted development. 

Delegated Decision - Officer Recommendation: 
Refuse 

No 

22/00394/FUL Retrospective: Construction of pergola and decking 
within existing beer garden – The Dyvels Hotel, 
Station Road, Corbridge 
Main issues: inappropriate development in the Green 
Belt with no demonstrated very special circumstances 
to outweigh the harm; and harm to the character and 
appearance of the building and the surrounding area. 
Delegated Decision - Officer Recommendation: 
Refuse 

Partial 
award 

 

Planning Appeals Split Decision 

Reference No Proposal and main planning considerations Award of 
costs? 

None   

Planning Appeals Dismissed (permission refused) 

Reference No Proposal and main planning considerations Award of 
costs? 

19/04687/OUT Outline permission for development for up to 43 
residential dwellings (Use Class C3), demolition, 
infrastructure, access, open space and landscaping 
(All matters reserved except for access) - land north 
of Eilansgate, Hexham 

Main issues: inappropriate development in the Green 

No 

Page 50



 

Belt; lack of information in relation to ecological 
impacts; loss of woodland and larger trees would 
impact the setting of the Conservation Area; lack of 
information in relation to drainage and flood risk; and 
the application does not secure necessary planning 
obligations in respect of affordable housing, 
healthcare and education. 

Delegated Decision - Officer Recommendation: 
Refuse 

 

Planning Appeals Withdrawn 

Reference No Proposal and main planning considerations Award of 
costs? 

None   

 

Planning Casework Unit Referrals 

Reference No Proposal and main planning considerations Award of 
costs? 

None   

Planning Appeals Received 
Appeals Received 

Reference No Description and address Appeal start date 
and decision 
level 

21/03396/FUL Construction of 3no. residential cottages with 
associated garages, access, car parking and 
landscaping and demolition of existing 
outbuilding(s) and extension(s) to 4 & 5 Front 
Street with replacement extension(s) and 
internal alterations - 4 and 5 Front Street, 
Capheaton 
Main issues: proposals are not 
commensurate with the size of the settlement 
and encroach into the open countryside, 
adversely impacting on the setting and 
appearance of the settlement and 

2 November 2022 

Delegated 
Decision - Officer 
Recommendation: 
Refuse 

Page 51



 

surrounding countryside; proposals result in 
harm to the heritage assets and their setting 
without clear and convincing justification of 
this harm or public benefits to outweigh the 
harm; layout, scale and design as well as 
pattern of development would be detrimental 
to local vernacular and character; lack of 
information on car parking, access 
arrangements, refuse, drainage and 
opportunities to promote walking, cycling and 
public transport;  and proposals result in 
biodiversity net loss. 

21/03397/LBC Listed Building Consent for demolition of 
existing outbuilding(s) and extension(s) to 4 
& 5 Front Street with replacement 
extension(s), internal alterations and 
alterations to boundary walls – 4 and 5 Front 
Street, Capheaton 
Main issues: proposals result in harm to the 
heritage assets without clear and convincing 
justification of this harm or public benefits to 
outweigh the harm. 

2 November 2022 

Delegated 
Decision - Officer 
Recommendation: 
Refuse 

 

21/02696/S106A Variation of S106 Agreement relating to 
planning permission A/2004/0323 dated 3rd 
February 2005 – Hawkshaw, Old Swarland, 
Swarland 
Main issues: the S106 continues to serve a 
useful purpose and insufficient information 
has been submitted to demonstrate that 
there is no longer a requirement for discount 
market value accommodation for a local 
person(s) in the area. 

7 November 2022 

Delegated 
Decision - Officer 
Recommendation: 
Refuse 

22/00913/FUL Resubmission of approval 18/03632/REM for 
the construction of two detached dwellings 
and associated works – land to north west of 
Blue House Farm Cottages, Blue House 
Farm Road, Netherton Colliery 
Maini issues: isolated residential 
development in the open countryside; and no 
planning obligation secured in respect of a 
contribution to the Coastal Mitigation Service 
or other alternative mitigation. 

7 December 2022 

Delegated 
Decision - Officer 
Recommendation: 
Refuse 

21/04208/FUL Proposal to erect a single self-build dwelling 
house – land south west of Hazeldene 
Cottage, Sinderhope 
Main issues: isolated development in the 
open countryside in an unsustainable 
location; fails to conserve and enhance the 
natural beauty and scenic qualities of the 
North Pennines AONB; visibility splays from 

7 December 2022 

Delegated 
Decision - Officer 
Recommendation: 
Refuse 

Page 52



 

the access are inadequate; insufficient 
information to assess ecological impacts; 
and insufficient information regarding foul 
water drainage. 

21/01833/FUL Development of 60 no. Pitches for holiday 
accommodation comprising touring 
caravan/campervan pitches and tents – land 
at Elwick Farm, Belford 
Main issues: unsustainable major tourism in 
the open countryside; lack of information in 
relation to impacts on wildlife; lack of 
information in respect of a nutrient 
calculation relating to the Lindisfarne SPA; 
and lack of information relating to surface 
water drainage and highways. 

10 January 2023 

Delegated 
Decision - Officer 
Recommendation: 
Refuse 

 

22/01812/FUL Proposed detached single storey garage and 
store with associated formation of driveway – 
Eland Close, Eland Land, Ponteland 
Main issues: inappropriate development in 
the Green Belt and the open countryside. 

24 January 2023 

Delegated 
Decision - Officer 
Recommendation: 
Refuse 

21/02287/FUL Convert and extend redundant cow byre to 
residential use (C3) for holiday let – 
Waterside Cottage, Acklington 
Main issues: development in an 
unsustainable location within the open 
countryside; insufficient information to justify 
non-mains foul drainage; insufficient 
information to demonstrate the proposal 
would not sterilise and identified sand and 
gravel resource; absence of suitable 
mitigation to address recreational 
disturbance with adverse effects on the 
Northumbria Coast SPA and Ramsar Site 
and the North Northumberland Dunes SAC; 
and loss of ancient woodland with no 
exceptional circumstances or suitable 
compensation strategy. 

25 January 2023 

Delegated 
Decision - Officer 
Recommendation: 
Refuse 

22/03609/AGTRES Notification of Prior Approval to convert an 
existing but now redundant agricultural 
building on the Guyzance Estate for 
permanent residential use – land south of 
Waterside Cottage, Acklington 
Main issues: impacts on adjacent ancient 
semi-natural woodland and River Coquet and 
Coquet Valley Woodland SSSI; and absence 
of suitable mitigation to address recreational 
disturbance with adverse effects on the 
Northumbria Coast SPA and Ramsar Site 

25 January 2023 

Delegated 
Decision - Officer 
Recommendation: 
Refuse 

Page 53



 

and the North Northumberland Dunes SAC. 

22/03324/FUL Erect a feed barn for storage of animal feed 
– Eastside, Partnership Field, Springwell, 
Ovington 
Main issues: inappropriate development in 
the Green Belt. 

13 February 2023 

Delegated 
Decision - Officer 
Recommendation: 
Refuse 

22/04634/FUL Demolition of detached garage and 
construction of side extension – 
Middlesteads Farm, Longhirst 
Main issues: design does not respect the 
character of the existing dwelling or its 
locality, would fail to remain subordinate and 
would result in unacceptable adverse impact 
on the character of the dwelling and its 
setting. 

16 February 2023 

Delegated 
Decision - Officer 
Recommendation: 
Refuse 

 

22/01297/FUL Development of 4 no. residential dwellings 
including associated access, landscaping 
and all other ancillary works – land north of 
junction of Station Road, South End, 
Longhoughton 
Main issues: would fail to preserve the 
setting of the Grade I listed Church of St 
Peter and St Paul; harmful impact on the 
character and appearance of the area; and 
absence of suitable mitigation to address 
recreational disturbance with adverse effects 
on the Northumbria Coast SPA and Ramsar 
Site and the North Northumberland Dunes 
SAC. 

21 February 2023 

Delegated 
Decision - Officer 
Recommendation: 
Refuse 

22/02704/CLEXIS Certificate of Lawful Development – Existing 
use for the siting of a caravan for residential 
purposes – land north of east of South 
Linden House, Longhorsley 
Main issues: it is not possible to conclude 
that the building has been used for a 
continuous period of 4 years as a dwelling. 

27 February 2023 

Delegated 
Decision - Officer 
Recommendation: 
Refuse 

22/02969/FUL Proposed new rear/side fence. 
(Retrospective) - 4 Admington Court, 
Sherbourne Park, Stakeford, Choppington 
Main issues: scale and design of the 
development are out of character in the 
street scene with detrimental visual 
appearance; and situated on adopted 
highway verge with insufficient evidence to 
demonstrate it will not harm the current and 
future maintenance of utilities and other 
associated works. 

20 March 2023 

Delegated 
Decision - Officer 
Recommendation: 
Refuse 

Page 54



 

22/03417/OUT Outline application with some matters 
reserved for development of one residential 
dwelling (Self Build); all matters reserved 
other than access – land north of Hill Top 
Cottage, Morpeth 
Main issues: development within the open 
countryside; inappropriate development in 
the open countryside; fails to promote the 
use of sustainable travel; fails to demonstrate 
that safe access can be achieved; and fails 
to demonstrate potential impacts on 
protected species and how these can be 
mitigated. 

21 March 2023 

Delegated 
Decision - Officer 
Recommendation: 
Refuse 

22/04124/FUL Erection of stables, tackroom and associated 
horse paddock – land east of Oakfield 
Lodge, Eachwick 
Main issues: inappropriate development in 
the Green Belt; and visually intrusive and 
harmful impact on the character and 
appearance of the site and surrounding 
landscape. 

21 March 2023 

Delegated 
Decision - Officer 
Recommendation: 
Refuse 

22/01121/FUL Proposed new dwelling house and 
outbuilding with associated works to building 
plots 1 and 2 – Plots 1 and 2, land south 
west of Castle Hills Farm Cottages, Castle 
Hills, Berwick-upon-Tweed 
Main issues: development in the open 
countryside; and absence of suitable 
mitigation to address recreational 
disturbance with adverse effects on the 
Northumbria Coast SPA and Ramsar Site 
and the North Northumberland Dunes SAC 

22 March 2023 

Delegated 
Decision - Officer 
Recommendation: 
Refuse 

22/03696/FUL Retrospective application for works carried 
out to add pillars with metal railings between 
at front boundary wall; stone face side wall 
between front and rear garden and 
construction of raised timber deck – 
Woodstock, Mill Lane, Haltwhistle 
Main issues: harm to the character and 
appearance of the Conservation Area; and 
harmful impact on residential amenity. 

22 March 2023 

Delegated 
Decision - Officer 
Recommendation: 
Refuse 

21/04592/FUL Demolition of 2 no. youth hostel cabins and 
erection of 8 no. caravan pitches and 
children's play area (as amended) - 
Hareshaw Linn Caravan Park, Bellingham 
Main issues: harmful visual impacts on the 
character and appearance of the site and 
surrounding area; and harmful impacts on 
residential amenity. 

23 March 2023 

Delegated 
Decision - Officer 
Recommendation: 
Refuse 

Page 55



 

22/04246/FUL Proposed single storey garage extension 
including a study and a shower room – 57 
Church Street, Amble 
Main issues: scale and design results in 
adverse impact on the character and 
appearance of the existing dwelling and the 
surrounding area. 

23 March 2023 

Delegated 
Decision - Officer 
Recommendation: 
Refuse 

22/04507/FUL Demolition of existing ground floor rear 
extension and replacement with two storey 
rear extension – The Coach House, 
Fenwicks Close Farm, Earsdon 
Main issues: inappropriate development in 
the Green Belt; and disproportionate addition 
that would be incongruous with the character 
of the area. 

3 April 2023 

Delegated 
Decision - Officer 
Recommendation: 
Refuse 

22/00637/FUL Alterations and extension – 2 West 
Hedgeley, Powburn 
Main issues: design would be out of scale 
and character with the existing property and 
surrounding area, and would harm the 
setting of Grade II listed buildings. 

4 April 2023 

Delegated 
Decision - Officer 
Recommendation: 
Refuse 

22/04665/FUL Proposed first floor extension over existing 
sun room and installation of a fixed window 
to the southern gable wall at high level – 63 
Merley Gate, Loansdean, Morpeth 
Main issues: the extension would constitute 
an incongruous addition that would be out of 
character with the dwelling and built context; 
and harmful impact upon residential amenity. 

12 April 2023 

Delegated 
Decision - Officer 
Recommendation: 
Refuse 

22/00437/FUL Change of use of land from equestrian 
grazing use to campsite use – land north 
east of Bolam Lake Boat House Wood Car 
Park, Belsay 
Main issues: inappropriate development in 
the Green Belt. 

13 April 2023 

Delegated 
Decision - Officer 
Recommendation: 
Refuse 

22/03911/FUL Proposal for a new family 1.5 storey dwelling 
with a garage, external parking and 
associated services - (Self Build) - 7 
Springfield Meadows, Alnwick 
Main issues: design and visual appearance; 
and fails to secure a contribution towards 
coastal mitigation measures. 

24 April 2023 

Delegated 
Decision - Officer 
Recommendation: 
Refuse 

22/04369/FUL Proposed replacement windows – 6 Albert 
Place, Berwick-upon-Tweed 
Main issues: fails to conserve and enhance 
the significance of the Conservation Area; 
and results in harm to the Conservation Area 

25 April 2023 

Delegated 
Decision - Officer 
Recommendation: 

Page 56



 

that is not outweighed by public benefits.  Refuse 

22/03876/FUL A storage shed and polytunnel to support 
existing woodland maintenance – land at 
south east of Pit Allotment Wood, Corbridge 
Main issues: inappropriate development in 
the Green Belt. 

16 May 2023 

Delegated 
Decision - Officer 
Recommendation: 
Refuse 

22/01012/FUL Conversion of agricultural buildings to create 
one dwelling including a link extension and 
detached garage – development site at 
Barley Hill House Barn, Kiln Pit Hill, Consett 
Main issues: design fails to reflect the 
character or appearance of the listed farm 
building and results in harm to the character 
and appearance of the listed building. 

17 May 2023 

Delegated 
Decision - Officer 
Recommendation: 
Refuse 

Recent Enforcement Appeal Decisions 
Enforcement Appeals Allowed 

Reference No Description and address Award of 
costs? 

None   

 

Enforcement Appeals Dismissed 

Reference No Description and address Award of 
costs? 

18/01525/ENDEVT 

 

Change of use of the land for the stationing of 2 
caravans including a linking structure for residential 
purposes - School House Farm, Kiln Pit Hill, Consett 

No 

18/01525/ENDEVT 

 

Erection of a building used to house parrots and other 
animals; the erection of a corrugated steel barn; the 
erection of 2 timber structures to accommodate birds; 
and the construction of a hardstanding area - School 
House Farm, Kiln Pit Hill, Consett 

No 

22/00571/ENDEVT 

 

Unauthorised siting of a caravan – land south-west of 
Hartburn Bridge, Morpeth 

No 

Page 57



 

(enforcement notice upheld with some variations)  

Enforcement Appeals Withdrawn 

Reference No Description and address Award of 
costs? 

None   

 

Enforcement Appeals Received 
Appeals Received 

Reference No Description and address Appeal start date  

22/00022/NOTICE Unauthorised dwelling – Horsley Banks 
Farm, Horsley 

6 April 2022 

Hearing date: 22 
November 2022 

22/00023/NOTICE Unauthorised stable buildings – Horsley 
Banks Farm, Horsley 

6 April 2022 

Hearing date: 22 
November 2022 

20/00481/ENDEVT Change of use of a forestry building for use 
as residential - English/Wheelings Wood, 
Corbridge 

2 March 2023 

21/00865/BRCOND Construction of retaining wall – Woodlands 
Rise, Corbridge Road, Hexham 

23 March 2023 

Inquiry and Hearing Dates 
Reference No Description and address Inquiry/hearing 

date and 
decision level 

18/03394/REM Reserved Matters Application relating to 
16/00078/OUT - Development of Phase 1 of 
proposals which include Trunk Road Service 
Area, Hotel and Innovation Centre plus 
associated access, parking, landscaping and 

Hearing - 27 June 
2023 

Committee 
Decision - Officer 

Page 58



 

other associated infrastructure – land west of 
Lancaster Park, Pinewood Drive, Lancaster 
Park, Morpeth 
Main issues: the design fails to preserve or 
make a positive contribution to local 
character and distinctiveness, and the site's 
surroundings, and fails to create or contribute 
to a strong sense of place. The development 
does not demonstrate high quality 
sustainable design, is not visually attractive, 
does not incorporate high quality materials 
and detailing, and is substantially altered 
from the approved outline planning 
application. 

Recommendation: 
Approve 

 

21/02077/FUL Proposed construction of 13no dwellings 
(including 2no affordable dwellings), creation 
of new access, car parking and soakaways 
(amended description) - land south east of 
The Manor House, Riding Mill 
Main issues: harm to the character and 
appearance of the site and surrounding area 
and curtilage listed boundary wall; harm to 
residential amenity; does not make sufficient 
provision for affordable housing on the site; 
insufficient information to fully assess the 
impacts of the proposed development on 
ecology and biodiversity and net gain for 
biodiversity;  does not secure necessary 
planning obligations in respect of affordable 
housing, open space and education. 

Hearing date to be 
confirmed 

Delegated 
Decision - Officer 
Recommendation: 
Refuse 

21/03915/LBC Listed Building Consent for demolition of a 
section of existing curtilage listed boundary 
wall to create access for residential 
development – land south east of The Manor 
House, Riding Mill 
Main issues: loss of historic fabric and 
unacceptable alteration of the historic 
curtilage listed boundary wall. 

Hearing date to be 
confirmed 

Delegated 
Decision - Officer 
Recommendation: 
Refuse 

Page 59



 

 
Implications 
Policy Decisions on appeals may affect future 

interpretation of policy and influence policy reviews 

Finance and value for money There may be financial implications where costs are 
awarded by an Inspector or where Public Inquiries 
are arranged to determine appeals 

Legal It is expected that Legal Services will be instructed 
where Public Inquiries are arranged to determine 
appeals 

Procurement None 

Human resources None 

Property None 

Equalities 
(Impact Assessment attached?)  

❏ Yes 
✓ No 
❏ N/a  

 

Planning applications and appeals are considered 
having regard to the Equality Act 2010 

Risk assessment None 

Crime and disorder As set out in individual reports and decisions 

Customer consideration None 

Carbon reduction Each application/appeal may have an impact on the 
local environment and have been assessed 
accordingly 

Wards All where relevant to application site relating to the 
appeal 

Background papers 
Planning applications and appeal decisions as identified within the report. 

Report author and contact details 
Elizabeth Sinnamon 
Development Service Manager 
Elizabeth.Sinnamon@northumberland.gov.uk 

Page 60


	Agenda
	Non participation in case of disclosable pecuniary interest
	Disclosure of Other Registerable Interests
	Disclosure of Non-Registerable Interests

	2 PROCEDURE TO BE FOLLOWED AT PLANNING MEETINGS
	4 MINUTES
	6 DETERMINATION OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS
	7 23/00584/OUT
	8 APPEALS
	Planning Appeals
	Purpose of report
	Recommendations
	Link to Corporate Plan
	Key issues

	Recent Planning Appeal Decisions
	Planning Appeals Allowed (permission granted)
	Planning Appeals Split Decision
	Planning Appeals Dismissed (permission refused)
	Planning Appeals Withdrawn
	Planning Casework Unit Referrals

	Planning Appeals Received
	Appeals Received

	Recent Enforcement Appeal Decisions
	Enforcement Appeals Allowed
	Enforcement Appeals Dismissed
	Enforcement Appeals Withdrawn

	Enforcement Appeals Received
	Appeals Received

	Inquiry and Hearing Dates
	Implications
	Background papers
	Report author and contact details



